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1. puBlic entity’s GeneRal inFoRmation 

ReGisteRed name: Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone Company SOC Ltd
ReGistRation numBeR:      2002/009856/07
physical addRess:     Captains Walk Building
                                           Tuzi Gazi Waterfront
                                         Pioneer Road
  Richards Bay
postal addRess:   Private Bag X1005
                                  Richards Bay
                                  3900
telephone numBeR:   +27 35 788 0571
FaX numBeR:  +27 35 788 0578
email addRess:   info@rbidz.co.za
WeBsite addRess:  www.rbidz.co.za
eXteRnal auditoRs:  Ngubane and Co.  
BanKeRs: ABSA Ltd  
company secRetaRy: Adv KN Harvey

paRt a: GeneRal inFoRmation
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2. stRateGic oveRvieW
2.1 vision

A preferred industrial location for quality investments in Africa.

2.2 mission
To attract appropriate sustainable investments for economic development of the region.

2.3 values
honesty: 

A member of RBIDZ shall speak the truth and create trust in minds of all stakeholders.
inteGRity:

We shall pursue ethical practices by being open, sincere and consistency of actions.
Respect:

We shall embrace diversity by treating each other with respect, trust and dignity at all times.
pRoFessionalism:

We shall conduct our business with our stakeholders and investors with highest levels of 
excellence, competence and responsibility.

sustainaBility:
We shall pursue the development of the RBIDZ to meet the present needs without compromising 
the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.

2.4 strategic outcome orientated Goals
• Attract new sustainable investments;
• Secure adequate resources to ensure the sustainability of the RBIDZ;
• Contribute towards job creation;
• Ensure good governance; and 
• Develop a fully serviced, compliant industrial estate



RICHARDS BAY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT ZONE ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015

GATEWAY TO WORLD MARKETS

6

T
he Richards Bay Industrial Development 
Zone (RBIDZ) was separately established by 
Government Notice No. 644 of 26 April 2002 

(Government Gazette 23369) and its proclaimed 
area was later extended by Government Notice 
No. 1045 of 4 August 2006 (Government Gazette 
29094). 

The programme is essential to Government’s 
strategic initiative of policy measures to “…elicit 
a higher level of investments that contribute to the 
growth of the economy and creation of jobs”.

The purpose of proclaiming the RBIDZ was to:
(a) Facilitate the creation of an industrial 

complex that has a strategic economic 
advantage;

(b) Provide the location for the establishment 
of strategic investments;

(c) Enable the exploitation of resource-
intensive industries;

(d) Take advantage of existing industrial 
capacity, promote integration with local 
industry and increase value-added 
production;

(e) Create employment and other economic 
and social benefits in the region in which it 
is located; 

(f) Be consistent with any applicable national 

policies and law, as determined by 
appropriate environmental, economic and 
technical analyses;

(g) Develop and operate an IDZ in the area 
designated in the operator permit, including 
all infrastructure, utilities, buildings, 
warehouses, factory shells and other 
facilities and improvements necessary for 
its operation, which may incorporate a 
delimited CCA, designated in accordance 
with Section 21A of the Customs & Excise 
Act (Act No. 91 of 1964) and linked to the 
Port of Richards Bay;

(h) Provide quality services infrastructure, 
including state-of-the-art ICT and transport 
infrastructure and business and utility 
services, which are appropriate to attract 
internationally competitive, export-
orientated manufacturing businesses; 

(i) Take ownership of the assets and affairs of 
the Zone and be responsible for ongoing 
management and maintenance thereof in 
an effective and efficient manner, which 
includes ensuring its sustainability and 
ensuring that both the zone and locators 
therein are compliant with all laws;

(j) Establish a one-stop service centre and 
provide commensurate HR capacity, 

In September 2002, the South African Cabinet established an Industrial Development 
Zone (IDZ) programme. This was done by promulgating specific regulations 
(Government Notice No: R1224 of 1 December 2002 in Government Gazette No: 
21803)  in terms of the Manufacturing Development Act, 1993 (Act No. 187 of 1993). 
These regulations have since been amended by Government Notice No R1065 of 27 
October 2002 (Government Gazette No. 29320).

The Richards Bay IDZ is a Schedule 3D entity in terms of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA). 

3.   leGislative and otheR mandates
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expertise and suited technologies for 
expedited servicing and assistance 
to the IDZ enterprises in respect of 
registration, business permits and 
licenses, environmental permits, accessing 
incentives, customs clearance processes, 
tax matters and similar;

(k) Make arrangements for and mobilise 
financial, human, physical, and intellectual 
requisite resources for the development of 
the Zone; and

(l) Operate in a manner that recognises that 
the shareholder prioritises development, 
socio-economic improvement and long 
term sustainability, rather than financial 
profit.

In respect of these laws, rules and regulations, 
the RBIDZ shall, in conjunction and collaboration 

with the South African Revenue Service (SARS): 
Customs and Excise Division, be responsible to 
ensure  compliance by IDZ enterprises, with all IDZ 
specific legislation, rules and regulations regarding 
movement of goods, persons and vehicles into 
and out of the proclaimed areas, as well as with 
legislation, guidelines and standards, specifically 
pertaining to safety, health and environment.

In short therefore, the purpose of the RBIDZ is to 
develop an industrial estate in order to attract local 
and foreign investors who will create production 
capacity to beneficiate South Africa’s raw materials 
prior to export and will thereby create employment 
and improve the skills base.  

It is thus an integral part of Government’s 
macro-economic policy to develop South Africa’s 
manufacturing sector by encouraging investment 
in the manufacturing industries, centred on 
beneficiation of the country’s natural resources.
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5.  FoReWoRd By the mec

In the reporting period, the government intensified 
its campaign against the socio-economic 
challenges of unemployment, inequality and 

poverty.
The government continually promoted issues of 

localisation (local content), industrialisation, value 
addition (beneficiation), infrastructure development, 
skills development and entrepreneurship 
development. All efforts were focused on the 
uncompromised implementation of broad-based 
black economic empowerment, which is at the core 
of Government’s transformation policy. Radical 
economic transformation dictates that Government 
must overhaul any system and programme that 
perpetuates inequality, unemployment and poverty. 
The government has a duty to ensure that the 
country’s economy is strong enough to benefit all 
its citizens irrespective of their class, race, gender 
and spatial location.

Global economic developments
Rapid economic growth in sub-Saharan Africa over 
the past decade is worth celebrating. Growth has 
averaged 5% a year or more, driven by domestic 
demand, foreign investment, strong commodity 

prices and improved economic governance. The 
ultimate measure of progress, however, is the well-
being of people – and Africa’s current growth has 
not done nearly as much as it should to reduce 
poverty, hunger and child mortality, or to improve 
education. (Africa’s Progress report 2014. (http://
www.africaprogresspanel.org/publications/policy-
papers/2014 – accessed on 9 June 2015)

South Africa’s global economic prospects have 
gradually improved compared to a year ago. The 
reporting time has seen global growth recovery 
prospects remaining strong, although uneven and 
mixed across regions. The International Monetary 
Fund (IMF) projects that global growth will be 3,9% 
in 2015.

Economic growth, trade and investment tell a 
compelling story. The Brazil, Russia, India, China, 
South Africa (BRICS) share of the world Gross 
Domestic Product (GDP) (in Purchasing Power 
Parity terms) increased from 16% in 2000 to nearly 
25% in 2010. This growth is expected to continue to 
rise, and by 2050, BRICS countries are expected to 
account for 47% of the total global GDP. According 
to the International Monetary Fund (IMF), BRICS 

mR michael maBuyaKhulu, mpp
MEC: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, 
TOURISM and ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS (EDTEA)

“The year is proof that as a responsible government, we 
are rising to fulfil the dreams and hopes of all the citizens 
of this province irrespective of their class, race, gender 
and spatial location. We are rising to attack inequality, 
poverty and unemployment head on. We are hell-bent to 
radically transform this economy to equitably serve and 
benefit all its citizens.” 



GATEWAY TO WORLD MARKETS

RICHARDS BAY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT ZONE ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015 11

countries will account for 61% of global growth in 
three years’ time. By 2050, BRICS, plus Indonesia, 
Mexico and Turkey together are projected to be 
50% larger than the current G-7 countries.

The New Global Economy argues that 
corporations based in emerging markets will play 
an increasingly prominent role in global business 
and cross-border business. The IMF projects that 
developing countries’ share of world trade will 
double in the next 40 years from 37% in 2007 to 
reach 69% in 2050. Much of this rise will be due to 
an expansion of trade and investment, not between 
developed countries and developing countries, but 
among developing countries.

domestic economic developments
The inability to enhance the production activity at 
both the primary and secondary sectors, coupled 
with the slow economic recovery in South Africa’s 
major trading partners, remain among the principal 
causes of the lacklustre growth performance in the 
country. Of course, there is a range of domestic 
issues, particularly in the energy sector and the 
labour market, which continue to put undue 
pressure on the economy.

In 2013, growth averaged 1,9%, well below 
potential growth, currently estimated to be around 
3,0%. Recent high frequency data shows that 
economic activity in South Africa is not recovering 
as quickly as it should. This is partly due to 
slowing consumer spending owing to a number of 
factors such as persistently high unemployment, 
disappointing manufacturing production as well as 
protracted strikes that offset the improvement of 
external conditions, to mention just a few. As stated 
earlier, these local issues are becoming extremely 
important in the quest to attract investment. Unlike 
before the crisis, investors are no longer looking at 
emerging countries as a basket, they now scrutinise 
internal issues in each country before making an 
investment decision.

The National Development Plan (NDP) cautions 
us that rapidly rising wages precede growth 
acceleration, therefore they are more likely to follow 
the onset of a sustained acceleration by two-to-five 
years. As a Province, our urgent focus is on access 
to employment opportunities for larger numbers of 
the unemployed. We all need to understand that 
growth demands trade-offs.
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RBidZ Key achievements
The performance of RBIDZ as an agency of the 
Department of Economic Development, Tourism 
and Environmental Affairs has proven itself to be 
a game changer within the provincial economic 
environment. 

The RBIDZ exceeded expectations when 
it managed to sign four new investors in the 
2014/2015 financial year with a total investment 
value of R2.34 billion. This demonstrates that the 
RBIDZ is aggressively pursuing its IDZ mandate 
despite challenges in the global economy. 

 In the reporting year, a number of important 
activities were dealt with by the RBIDZ that 
include:
•	 Intensifying investor recruitment in pursuit of the 

R12 billion project pipeline;
•	 Escalating infrastructure roll-out within the Zone;
•	 Streamlining processes to acquire more land 

and strategic properties so as to expand the 
zone’s footprint;

•	 Refocusing marketing initiatives to targeted 
sectors  as outlined in the marketing strategy;

•	 Improving stakeholder relations to bring about 
value-add to potential investors;

•	 Commissioning the Phase 1 A electrical 
infrastructure and the ceremonially switching 
on the lights, which was conducted by Minister 
Rob Davies in December 2014;

•	 The KZN Provincial Legislature endorsing the 
RBIDZ’s 50-year Master Plan; and

•	 Investors creating 1 791 construction jobs and 
27 other jobs.

In the year ended, four investors signed recognition 
agreements and one of them started operations 
in Phase 1A. The RBIDZ has begun generating 
revenue through lease arrangements with investors. 

conclusion
The year is proof that as a responsible government, 
we are rising to fulfil the hopes and dreams of all the 
citizens of this Province irrespective of their class, 
race, gender and spatial location. We are rising to 
attack inequality, poverty and unemployment head 
on. We are hell-bent to radically transform this 
economy to equitably serve and benefit all of its 
citizens. 

All of this would not be possible without the 
financial support and unfailing commitment from 
the Department of Trade and Industry (DTI) and the 
strategic leadership and support of the RBIDZ Board 
in transforming the vision into reality. We have also 
enjoyed great partnerships with key players in the 
provincial business sector who have shown great 
confidence in the RBIDZ. Finally, it would be remiss 
of me not to formally thank our investors who made 
the right decision to locate in the RBIDZ.

mR michael maBuyaKhulu, mpp
MEC: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, TOURISM and 
ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS
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The 2014/2015 financial year has seen further 
development of the RBIDZ in its quest to 
become increasingly relevant in bringing 

new investors, new industries and new jobs to the 
Richards Bay area.  

land development 
The RBIDZ continued with the development of its 
existing property in Phase 1A, to the extent that in 
December 2014, the Board was able to invite the 
Minister of Trade and Industry, Dr Davies, the Premier 
of the Province of KwaZulu-Natal, Mr Mchunu, 
and the MEC for Economic Development, Tourism 
and Environmental Affairs, Mr Mabuyakhulu, to 
celebrate by turning on the lights in the first 22ha of 
Phase 1A, which then became ready for occupation. 
This was a major milestone for the Company given 
that it is currently focused on two areas, namely; the 
development of land and the attraction of investors. 

The RBIDZ will, in the New Year, complete 
construction of Phase 1A and begin developing 
Phase 1F. The RBIDZ secured funding from the 
Special Economic Zone Fund for the development 
of Phase 1F through partnerships with the DTI. 
In addition, the RBIDZ has already paid R101 
million to the City of uMhlathuze in respect of bulk 

contributions, which was paid during the reporting 
period.

investment attraction 
The RBIDZ was also successful in regard to the 
area of investment attraction. The visit by the 
Minister, Premier and MEC also celebrated a 
second event, namely the signing of agreements 
with two further investors in Phase 1A, namely RB 
Energy Services trading as Lovemore Brothers, a 
heavy logistics company and SPS Manufacturing, 
a piping manufacturer. The combined value of 
these investments is R320 million. Soon thereafter, 
RB Energy Services began trading and the RBIDZ 
was for the first time able to realise rental income. 

Two further investors, ProStar Export Paints 
and Energuys, also signed recognition and/or 
lease agreements with the Company. Energuys 
will establish a R2 billion biomass power plant in 
Phase 1F, while Prostar will invest R16 million in 
a paint factory in Phase 1A. This brings the total 
value of investments in terms of contracts signed 
during the year to R2,34 billion. These investments, 
together with the pre-existing Tata Steel and 
previously announced projects, bring the total 
investment in the RBIDZ, either in terms of actual 

6.  FoReWoRd By the chaiRpeRson

ms BonGiWe Kunene
BOARD CHAIRPERSON, JULY 2015

“The RBIDZ continues to focus on the strengths of the 
Richards Bay area in targeting investment.”
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investment on the ground or signed agreements, is 
close to R8 billion. 

master plan
The RBIDZ continues to focus on the strengths 
of the Richards Bay area in targeting investment. 
These include an existing heavy industry base, 
a deep water port, the largest aluminium smelter 
in the southern hemisphere, local producers 
producing over 36% of the world’s titanium slag 
and pig iron, good rail links to mineral-rich inland 
areas, a local forestry and agricultural industry and 
a good location for export to the world.  The RBIDZ 
has, through its master plan and strategic planning 
processes, identified additional opportunities 
based on the strengths of the area and possible 
expansion areas. These include agro-processing 
(taking into account the potential of the area, 
including the Makhathini Flats in north-eastern 
KwaZulu-Natal and relationships the RBIDZ has 
developed in Oman), and the downstream metals 
industry (taking into account the exising aluminium, 
titanium, magnetite and chromium facilities in the 
area) and the attraction of businesses in the fields 
of renewable and clean energy. The RBIDZ will work 
hard to unlock the potential in these areas.

operation phakisa
The RBIDZ participated in Operation Phakisa, a 
project intended to fast-track the maritime industry. 
This process identified additional opportunities 
which the RBIDZ can utilise to bring investment to 

the area. These include ship and oil rig repair and 
manufacturing (taking into account the deep water 
port, exploration for oil and gas off the coast of 
South Africa and significant discoveries of oil and 
gas off the east coast of Africa), the attraction of 
a liquified natural gas terminal, a gas-to-power 
industry and the creation of a container facility in 
Richards Bay.  

appreciation 
All the RBIDZ has achieved would not be possible 
without the support and efforts of many people. I 
would like to thank Minister Davies and the staff at 
the DTI, without whose financial support the RBIDZ 
could not continue to develop infrastructure. I 
would further like to thank the MEC of EDTEA, MEC 
Mabuyakhulu and his staff for all the support that 
they have provided the RBIDZ and for the efforts 
and keen interest they have shown in ensuring its 
success. I would like to thank the CEO of the RBIDZ 
and his team for their amazing achievements. For 
many years people asked: “Where is the RBIDZ?”. 
Today it can be seen. The team has worked hard 
to achieve this and we thank them for their efforts. 
Lastly, I would like to thank my fellow directors for 
their wisdom, input and support for the Company. 

ms BonGiWe Kunene
BOARD CHAIRPERSON, JULY 2015
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7.  chieF eXecutive oFFiceR’s oveRvieW 

“A key highlight was the commencement of operations 
by the first locator, RB Energy Services, in Phase 1A, 
as well as receiving the initial lease income.”

The 2014/2015 financial year brought one of 
the most exciting periods in the evolution 
of the Richards Bay Industrial Development 

Zone (RBIDZ) as evidenced by the signing of four 
investors earmarked to locate in Phase 1A. One of 
them began operations in Phase 1A, and two of the 
investors will initiate construction of top structures 
during the 2015/2016 financial year.

economic outlook

Notwithstanding this exciting development, some 
economic theories and predictions suggested that 
2015 coincided with the end of the seven-year 
economic downturn that had a devastating effect 
on the markets. Historical economic cycles arguably 
depict a seven-year recessionary repetitive pattern 
as demonstrated by the 2008 financial crisis; 2001 
dotcom bubble, 1994 bond market lapse; 1987 
Asian Flu; 1980 energy crisis; 1973 oil crisis, etc. 
Some economic theorists argue that if these cycles 
sustain this trend, then 2015 is poised to mark 
the beginning of a new downturn. This theory is 
somewhat supported by the slowing down of growth 
in China with a consequent reduction in the demand 

for the metals and minerals where China has largely 
led demand over the past years. The RBIDZ has 
ensured that it is placed to both adjust to the world 
economy as well as to exploit any opportunities 
offered by the changes that will occur. The RBIDZ 
has noted with keen interest that the reductions in 
the international price of raw materials resulting 
from reductions in demand by China might make it 
more cost-effective to beneficiate products close to 
where they are mined, which could have a positive 
effect on the RBIDZ. Conversely, lower oil prices 
coupled with an oversupply of underutilised ships 
may decrease the cost of shipping. Throughout 
the reporting period, the RBIDZ has taken these 
factors into account in its investor recruitment 
drive. Identifying the complexity of the prevailing 
environment, there has been an emphasis on 
filtering the exclusive advantages that Richards Bay 
offers to the market.

operational environment
South Africa, through the Industrial Policy Action Plan 
(IPAP), is determined to grow the competitiveness 
and labour-absorbing capacity of the manufacturing 

mR phumelele motsoahae 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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sector, particularly in the traditional and non-
traditional tradeable and value-adding sector in the 
economy. In this context, considerable emphasis 
has been placed on reducing the current account 
deficit through a combination of expanding exports 
and replacing imports, in these value-adding and 
labour-intensive sectors (IPAP, 2014, p.6). It is clear 
that Government has started implementing policies 
for the purpose of diversifying and expanding its 
export markets. 

A specific policy instrument used in this regard 
is the implementation of Special Economic Zones 
(SEZs). SEZ are generally defined as geographically 
designated areas of a country set aside for specially 
targeted economic activities, and supported 
through special arrangements and systems that are 
often different from those that apply to the rest of 
the country.

 The most reassuring aspect in the governance 
framework was the promulgation of the SEZ Act. 
The SEZ environment foretells significant benefits 
that will be extended to the diverse investment 
community keen to make the Richards Bay IDZ 
their home. 

The year 2014/2015 was characterised by 
intensifying efforts to exploit and optimise the 
mineral wealth, deep-water port and agricultural 
produce in the northern Zululand region. To this 
end, industrialisation and further beneficiation of 
aluminium, titanium, and magnetite offer significant 
opportunities of advancing the beneficiation 
process into component manufacturing. 

Secondly, the agricultural sector offers 
prodigious opportunities to give effect to the 
provincial economic strategy of Industrial 
Economic Hubs. The advancement of the sector 
will enable RBIDZ to honour the Memorandum 
of Understanding (MoU) that was signed with the 
Port of Sohar in Oman to supply fresh produce to 
its markets. The RBIDZ commissioned an agro-
processing feasibility study as a way of exploring 

opportunities for the advancement of an agro-
processing hub within the Zone. 

South Africa has jurisdiction over a very large 
Exclusive Economic Zone (EEZ) of 1.5nm km2 

(coastal extent). Over the next five years, South 
Africa will transition from the current sector-based 
ocean management approach to a coordinated 
cross-sectoral planning scheme (White Paper on the 
National Environmental Management of the Ocean – 
May 2014). Effective ocean governance will need to 
identify and manage interdependencies across socio-
economic aspirations and environmental integrity. 
Operation Phakisa aspires to implement this new 
coordinated ocean governance approach over the 
next five years through its four priority areas: marine 
transport and manufacturing, offshore oil and gas 
exploration, aquaculture, as well as marine protection 
services and ocean governance.

In the reporting period, the RBIDZ actively 
participated in Operation Phakisa Oceans Lab. The 
presence of the Richards Bay’s deep water port 
offers significant opportunities for the development 
of diverse marine-oriented projects that resonate 
with Operation Phakisa on the KwaZulu-Natal 
eastern seaboard. These include ship building and 
repair, creating an enhanced container handling 
capability, boatbuilding and various activities 
relevant to the oil and gas industry, including rig 
building and repair and the establishment of a 
liquified natural gas terminal. Exploiting this latent 
opportunity will require an active partnership with 
Transnet whereby the RBIDZ can have access to the 
port so as to provide the necessary infrastructure to 
locate these proposed activities. 

performance information
The RBIDZ is improving every year in its 
achievement of set targets. About 70% of targets 
were successfully met and 12% partially met, 
leaving only 18% of the targets as work in progress. 
The Company is working closely with regulatory 
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authorities to streamline processes in order to fast- 
track project approvals. In the reporting period, the 
majority of the non-achieved targets were those 
linked to various environmental authorisations and 
statutory approvals and it is pleasing to report that 
even those that were not met are in progress. All the 
non-achieved targets have been carried over to the 
next financial year. The entity received clean audits 
as well as clean audits in supply chain management 
from the internal auditors for quarter one, two and 
three.

master plan
The RBIDZ 50-year Integrated Master Plan and 
10-year Business Plan that was approved by the 
RBIDZ Board in the 2013/2014 financial year has 
also received approval from the KZN Department of 
Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental 
Affairs, the Department of Trade and Industry, 
the KZN Economic Sectors and Infrastructure 
Development Technical Cluster Committee and 
the KZN Economic Sectors and Infrastructure 
Development Cabinet Cluster Committee in the 
2014/2015 financial year. Further environmental, 
geotechnical, geo-hydrological and heritage 
specialist studies were concluded for the Phase 2A 
expansion area during the 2014/2015 financial year. 
No fatal flaws were identified during this process, 
allowing the RBIDZ to continue negotiations with 
the landowner for the acquisition of approximately 
1 200ha.  

2014/2015 highlights
A key highlight was the commencement of operations 
by the first locator, RB Energy Services in Phase 1A, 
as well as receiving the initial lease income. Another 
highlight was the presence of the Minister of Trade 
and Industry together with the Premier of KwaZulu-

Natal and the MEC for Economic Development, 
Tourism and Environmental Affairs, who presided 
over the investor signing ceremony in December 
2014. This event also marked the official switching 
on of lights in Phase 1A.

In addition, RBIDZ managed to attain a Level 2 
BBEEE status, further reinforcing its commitment 
to the transformation agenda. Significantly, the 
Company has now become a well-known contributor 
to the enterprise development programme as well 
as an established authority in the BBEEE fraternity. 
Furthermore, there has been strong support for  
enterprise development where SMME and other 
emerging women-owned companies have been 
issued with equipment to support their programmes 
within the IDZ. Importantly, the RBIDZ has upheld 
its commitment to effect payment to its contractors 
on time upon receipt of a correct and authentic 
invoice. Correct invoices are paid within a 30-day 
window from submission.

Commitment to skills development is upheld 
through diverse inhouse programmes of employee 
development such as coaching and mentorship. 
This effort is further reinforced by the conclusion of 
a MoU with the Umfolozi Technical and Vocational 
Education and Training (TVET). The aim of this 
collaboration is to establish a strong organisational 
link with tertiary institutions that will provide the 
requisite skills sets needed by the diverse investor 
manufacturing sector. The reporting year has been 
marked with accelerated activities, especially in 
Phase 1A – a good indication that the RBIDZ is 
poised for future greatness.

mR phumelele motsoahae 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, 29 JULY 2015



GATEWAY TO WORLD MARKETS

RICHARDS BAY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT ZONE annual RepoRt 2014-2015 19



GATEWAY TO WORLD MARKETS

Board of directors

RICHARDS BAY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT ZONE annual RepoRt 2014-201520

Seated from left to right: Phumelele Motsoahae (CEO), Mel Clark (Deputy Chairperson) and Bongiwe Kunene (Chairperson).

Standing from left to right: Andile Mahlalutye, Kumaran Naidoo, Mohlomi Nkopane (CFO – resigned 31 January 2015 ) and  
Matshediso Ndlovu.
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Seated from left to right: Zolani Fihlani, Nozipho Sithole, Mbali Ndlovu

Standing from left to right: Tine Eboka, Elphas Mbatha, Sibusiso Makhanya, Damon Mathfield (resigned 5 March 2014)
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phumelele motsoahae 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

8. statement oF ResponsiBility FoR peRFoRmance 
inFoRmation

statement of Responsibility for performance information for the year ended 31 march 2015

As the Chief Executive Officer responsible for the preparation of the public entity’s performance information, in my 
opinion, the performance information fairly reflects the actual achievements against planned objectives, indicators 
and targets as per the strategic and annual performance plan of the public entity for the financial year ended 31 
March 2015.

The RBIDZ performance information for the year ended 31 March 2015 has been examined by the external 
auditors and their report is presented on page 61. 

The performance information of the entity set out on page 22 to page 41 has been approved by the Board.

mR phumelele motsoahae  
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, 29 JULY 2015    
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strategic Goal strategic 
objectives

Key performance 
area annual target achievements Reasons for variance

ENSURE GOOD 
GOVERNANCE

Adherence to 
legislation, ethical 
standards, best 
practices and 
internal policies

Strategy and APP 
developed and 
implemented

1 1 Target met 

Risk mitigation plans 
executed on time and 
monitored

1 risk assessment 1 risk assessment

1 risk plan 1 risk plan

4 risk reports 4 risk reports

Organisational 
performance monitored

4 performance reports 4 performance 
reports

Unqualified audit 1 unqualified audit 1 unqualified audit

Develop an 
appropriate financial 
and supply chain 
management 
framework

Percentage budget 
spent within the 
financial year as per 
the APP

100% 61.37% Target not met. 
The acquisition and 
payment for Phase 
1F as well as the 
remaining balance 
for Phase 1A was not 
spent

Turnaround time 
for procurement of 
goods and services: 
90 days for an open 
tender, 30 days for a 
closed tender, and 105 
days for construction 
contracts

90% 90% Target met

Percentage of valid 
invoices paid within 30 
days

100% 100%

Turnaround time 
for emergency 
maintenance activities

5 days 5 days

Establish integrated 
ICT management 
systems

ICT systems availability 
to be at 95% all the 
time

95% 85.5% Target not met.
The UPS was outdated 
and could not sustain 
the random electricity 
blackouts

Implement Corporate 
Social Investment 
(CSI)

Number of CSI 
initiatives

8 17 Target met

Number of internship 
positions created

3 3

Promote active 
stakeholder relations 
management and 
engagement

A stakeholder 
engagement 
framework developed 
and implemented

Conduct a stakeholder 
mapping exercise and 
draft an action plan

1 stakeholder 
mapping exercise 
conducted and a 
matrix developed.
Quarterly action 
plans produced and 
quarterly reports 
compiled

9. peRFoRmance inFoRmation
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strategic Goal strategic 
objectives

Key performance 
area annual target achievements Reasons for variance

ENSURE GOOD 
GOVERNANCE

Adherence to SHE 
legal requirements

Number of SHE 
construction audits 
conducted per financial 
year

16 22 Target met

Environmental 
feasibility studies 
finalised

Environmental 
feasibility studies 
undertaken

Environmental 
feasibility 
studies finalised 
(Environmental 
Specialist Report 
produced)

Initiate EIA process for 
Phase 2 infrastructure 

Appointment and 
supervision of service 
provider (Draft Scoping 
Report)

Service provider not 
appointed. Draft 
Scoping Report not 
initiated

Target not met.
Delays in completing 
the land acquisition 
processes

Environmental 
Approval for Phase 1F

Commission the EIA 
process for Phase 1F. 
EIA specialist studies 
report

EIA specialist 
reports for Phase 1F  
completed in January  
2015

Target met

Environmental approval 
for railway line to 
Phase 1F

Appointment and 
supervision. Draft 
scoping report

Draft basic scoping 
assessment report 
submitted

Water use licence 
(WUL) for Phase 1A  
issued

WUL for Phase 1A  
obtained

WUL approval 
for Phase 1A not 
obtained

Target not met.
The WUL was not 
submitted to the 
Department of Water 
and Sanitation (DWS) 
as planned due to 
requests for additional 
information by DWS

WUL for Phase 1F 
issued

WUL for Phase 1F 
obtained

WUL approval 
for Phase 1F not 
obtained

Target not met.
WUL was not 
submitted to DWS as 
planned due to delays 
in the completion of 
the geo-hydrological 
report. There was a 
challenge in obtaining 
sufficient underground 
water samples as most 
drilled wells were dry 
for longer periods than 
anticipated

Develop and 
implement quality 
management system 
(ISO 9001:2000)

ISO 9001 obtained ISO 9001 accredited. 
Certification audit

Certification audit 
conducted by SABS 
and a clearance of 
findings letter was 
received in March 
2015 

Target met
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strategic Goal strategic 
objectives

Key performance 
area annual target achievements Reasons for variance

SECURING 
ADEQUATE 
RESOURCES TO 
ENSURE FULLY 
SERVICED, 
COMPLIANT SITES

Securing of funding Number of funding 
applications submitted

2 2 Target met

Secure purchases 
or options on land 
parcels identified for 
development

Number of hectares 
acquired

121ha A Service Level 
Agreement has 
been signed 
with uMhlathuze 
Municipality for 
121ha (Phase 1F)

Target not met.
The approval of 
the Phase 1F sale 
agreement not finalised

Ensure development 
of the Zone is 
aligned to the Master 
Plan

Approvals of 
engineering designs 
for Phase 1F by local 
authority

Phase 1F preliminary 
engineering designs 
finalised

Concept design 
finalised

Target not met.
The detail design for 
Phase 1F cannot be 
finalised until WUL 
approval has been 
received from DWS

Initiate PDA 
Applications for Phase 
2A

Appoint and supervise 
consultants to 
undertake specialist 
studies

Specialist studies 
to support PDA 
applications were 
completed in 
December 2014 

Target met

Ensure effective 
human resources 
management and 
development

Number of 
performance 
agreements aligned to 
the APP and signed

29 29

Number of 
performance 
assessments 
conducted

2 2

Employee wellness Approved policy 
and framework. 
Implementation of 
Employee Assistance 
Programme (EAP)

Policy approved Target not met
There are budgetary 
constraints and the 
framework will not be 
implemented once 
approved
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strategic Goal strategic 
objectives

Key performance 
area annual target achievements Reasons for variance

DEVELOP A 
FULLY SERVICED, 
COMPLIANT 
INDUSTRIAL 
ESTATE

Infrastructure 
development for all 
RBIDZ land parcels

Commissioning 
certificate for Phase 
1A engineering 
infrastructure received

62ha serviced 42 ha fully serviced Target not met. The 
installation of civil 
engineering services 
was delayed by late 
completion of the bulk 
earthworks 

Implementation 
of maintenance 
strategy for all 
completed engineering 
infrastructure 

Phase 1 A fence 
maintenance
platform maintenance

Phase 1A fence 
maintenance and 
platform maintenance 
activities were 
completed in March 
2014

Target met

Stage 1 of Phase 1A 
electrical infrastructure 
completed. 
Contract management

Completion of 
electrical infrastructure 
of Stage 1 and 2 of 
Phase 1A

Installation 
of electrical 
infrastructure 
was completed in 
September 2014

Completion of 
Phase 1A Stage 2 
Electrical Engineering 
Infrastructure 

62ha serviced 42ha fully serviced Target not met.
The installation of 
electrical engineering 
infrastructure was 
delayed due to 
incomplete road and 
pavement profiles

Implementation of 
maintenance strategy 
for completed 
engineering 
infrastructure  

Maintain all completed 
civil engineering 
infrastructure in 
Quarter 4

Civil engineering 
infrastructure not 
maintained

Target not met.
The Service Level 
Agreement has not yet 
been concluded

Number of people 
employed for 
construction jobs by 
the RBIDZ (contract 
management)

600 1 791 Target met
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strategic Goal strategic 
objectives

Key performance 
area annual target achievements Reasons for variance

ATTRACT NEW 
INVESTMENTS

Promote and 
facilitate investor 
recruitment

Number of leads 
generated

10 12 Target met

Implement marketing 
and branding initiatives

3 advertorial 
publications

1 Annual Report and  
2 newsletters

Airports advertisement

3 advertorial 
publications
1 Annual Report and 
2 newsletters
Airports 
advertisement  
conducted as per 
plan

Number of investors 
signed within RBIDZ

3  4

Implement Business 
Retention and 
Support Initiatives

Implement investor 
project facilitation 
plans for the signed 
investors
(one-stop shop)

4 project facilitation 
plans implemented

6 project facilitation 
plans implemented

Conduct focused 
research and make 
available to potential 
investors and 
stakeholders

2 2

Business retention and 
aftercare initiatives 
implemented

6 7

Number of investors 
undertaking 
construction

1 investor undertaking 
construction

1 investor 
undertaking 
construction

Number of youth 
trained as tradesmen

15 8 Target not met.
The intake of students 
for artisan training 
was delayed by 
investor processes 
in progressing to 
implementation stage

CONTRIBUTE 
TOWARDS JOB 
CREATION

To create decent 
jobs and facilitate 
skills transfer to local 
workforce

Number of jobs created 
by investors
(solar water geysers 
plant)

90 27 Target not met.
Only 27 out of 
90 planned jobs 
were created by 
investors due to slow 
progression on certain 
investment initiatives
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10. auditoR’s RepoRt: pRedeteRmined oBJectives

Refer to page 61 of the Report of the Auditors Report, published as Part E: Financial Information.

11. oveRvieW oF puBlic entity’s peRFoRmance

11.1. service delivery environment

infrastructure development 
pRoJect status

Phase 1A Stage 2 Bulk Earthworks (46ha) Project completed on 30 October 2014

Phase 1A Stage 1 Electrical Engineering & ICT Services (22ha) Project completed on 19 September 2014 

Phase 1A Stage 2A Civil Engineering Services (20ha) Project completed on 11 December 2014

Phase 1A Stage 2A Electrical Engineering & ICT Services (20ha) Project completed on 19 March 2015

Phase 1A Stage 2B Civil Engineering Services (20ha) The project was 77% complete on 19 March 2015

Phase 1A Stage 2B Electrical Engineering & ICT Services (20ha) The contract was awarded on 16 February 2015

Phase 1A Entrance Gate & Customs Control Area Design completed in December 2014 and the 
construction tender was awarded on 30 March 2015

Medway Road Upgrade Detail design commenced in November 2015 
Construction tender expected to be advertised in August 
2015

Phase 1F Design of Engineering Services Concept design of engineering services was completed 
in December 2014 with detail design expected to be 
completed in August 2015

11.2. construction Jobs created
With the implementation of engineering infrastructure, 1 791 cumulative construction jobs were created during the 
2014/2015 financial year.

11.3. RBidZ master plan 
The RBIDZ 50-year Integrated Master Plan and 10-year Business Plan that was approved by the RBIDZ Board in 
the 2013/2014 financial year, has also received approval from the KZN Department of Economic Development, 
Tourism and Environmental Affairs, the Department of Trade and Industry, the KZN Economic Sectors and 
Infrastructure Development (ESID) Technical Cluster Committee, and the KZN Economic Sectors and Infrastructure 
Development Cabinet Cluster Committee in the 2014/2015 financial year.

Further environmental, geotechnical, geo-hydrological and heritage specialist studies were concluded for the 
Phase 2A expansion area during the 2014/2015 financial year. No fatal flaws were identified during this process, 
allowing the RBIDZ to continue negotiations with the landowner for the acquisition of approximately 1 200ha.  

12. investoR attRaction 
A more focused and streamlined investor attraction process was undertaken in the 2014/2015 financial year. 
With 22ha of serviced land readily available for investment projects at the beginning of financial year, an influx of 
investor enquiries were received and managed, leading to a generation of a healthy investor pipeline worth more 
than R10 billion. 
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Graph 1: Investor pipeline

As graph 1 above depicts, a total of 35 investor enquiries were generated during the reporting period, 12 of which 
were converted into leads successfully submitting land application documents and letters of intent, and out of 12 
leads, five projects were converted to committed projects (approved by the Board), while a majority (four) of the 
committed projects signed lease and recognition agreements with the RBIDZ, and the balance of 23 remained in 
the pipeline as enquiries at the conception stage. 

Of particular note, one of the signed projects, RB Energy Services trading as Lovemore Brothers, commenced 
with operations, resulting in the RBIDZ, for the first time, being able to realise rental income. 

The four signed investment companies are RB Energy Services (Pty) Ltd for Logistics operations, SPS 
Manufacturing (Pty) Ltd for PVC-O piping systems, Byromate (Pty) Ltd for Biomass to Energy plant and Pro Star 
Export Paints (Pty) Ltd for paint manufacturing plant. 

The four signed investors were to the tune of R2,34 billion investment value in relation to R4,56 billion signed 
in the 2013/2014 financial year, making the RBIDZ the first IDZ in the country to sign seven investment projects to 
the total value of R6,89 billion within two years. Graph 2 below displays the total value of investments signed by 
RBIDZ over 2013/2014 and 2014/2015 financial years.

Graph 2: Total value of signed investors: 2013/2014 vs 2014/2015

Stakeholder engagement plays a vital role as it also contributes to investor attraction. An enhanced and focused 
stakeholder management process employed in the reporting financial year did not only improve stakeholder 
relationships but also increased stakeholder confidence towards RBIDZ as an investment destination. 
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Graph 3: Sources of enquiries

This is proven by Graph 3 above, which indicates the sources of the 35 investor enquiries. As indicated in the 
graph, most of RBIDZ enquiries are received through stakeholder referrals largely from the DTI, Trade and Investment 
(TIKZN), local municipalities Transnet, and the Port of Richards Bay. A fair amount of 10 enquiries were received 
through our website, while direct marketing (presentations, exhibitions and participation in different events) only 
accounts for five enquiries being received. It is the intention of the RBIDZ to increase enquiries received through 
direct marketing initiatives during the 2015/2016 financial year through a marketing plan and investor outreach 
programme yet to be developed.

 

Graph 4: Enquiries received by sectors

It is interesting to note, as shown in graph 4 above, that out of 35 enquiries received from investors that have 
shown interest to locate to RBIDZ, dominating sectors were metals beneficiation (10), Green Economy (10) and 
chemical processing operations (10). Agro-processing accounted for three enquiries while logistics accounted 
for two enquiries. Metals beneficiation enquiries were largely associated with the proposed establishment of the 
metals hub to focus on downstream beneficiation of aluminum, iron and titanium, while green economy enquiries 
were attributed to the Department of Energy’s call for proposals for energy mix initiatives within Renewable 
Energy Independent Power Producer Programme (REIPPP). Significantly, the above sectors have been prioritised 
by RBIDZ within its marketing strategy as sectors of comparative advantage and are aligned to the Industrial 
Policy Action Plan, Provincial Growth and Development Strategy (PGDS), National Development Plan, and Local 
Development Sector Plans. 
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Further, the RBIDZ successfully hosted a sod turning, an Investor Signing Ceremony and the switching on of 
lights in Phase 1A, which was officiated by The Honourable Minister of Trade and Industry, Dr Rob Davies, The 
Honourable Premier of KwaZulu-Natal, Mr Senzo Mchunu, and The Honourable MEC of Economic Development, 
Tourism and Environmental Affairs, Mr Michael Mabuyakhulu.

In a separate event, the RBIDZ hosted an SMME workshop and a dialogue session between signed investors 
and local SMMEs, mainly to share the investors’ future needs for goods and services with the SMMEs. The session 
afforded the RBIDZ investors a platform to illustrate the nature of a supply base that they look for in order to meet 
their manufacturing and operational requirements. The workshop also provided the SMMEs an opportunity to 
interact with RBIDZ investors and understand the business developments in the pipeline and thus prepare to meet 
the locators’ business requirements, including standards and methods of operations. Opportunities discussed 
included: security and cleaning services; transportation of products; waste management; clearing and forwarding 
services; office equipment; and landscaping services, among others.

13. peRFoRmance inFoRmation By pRoGRamme

13.1. programme 1: administration
programme purpose:  
•  To provide strategic support to the Company and to maintain good corporate governance systems that guide 

the implementation of organisational strategy in line with the mission espoused in this report; 
•  To establish and maintain appropriate financial and supply chain management systems and procedures as well 

as ensuring compliance to applicable legislation, guidelines and reporting mandates; and 
•  To provide and manage human capital and implement integrated ICT systems.

Administration is made up of the following sub-programmes: Governance & Strategy, Finance & Supply Chain 
Management and Corporate Services. 

13.2. programme 2: infrastructure planning & development
programme purpose: 
• To develop and maintain world-class infrastructure for RBIDZ land through an integrated planning, design and 

management process.

13.3. programme 3: Business development and marketing 
programme purpose:
• To formulate strategies and measures aimed at attracting fixed investment for the production of exports and 

import substitutes into the Zone. The principal intention of the Programme is to assist the RBIDZ to fulfil its 
mandate of attracting meaningful investment that will create jobs and enhance productive capacity. 

13.4. programme 4: safety, health, environment and Quality
programme purpose: 
• To ensure that RBIDZ operates responsibly and commits to long-term sustainability through the implementation 

of international best practices with regards to quality management, health and safety, environmental 
management and estate management.
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14. stRateGic oBJectives, peRFoRmance indicatoRs and planned taRGets 
strategic Goal strategic objectives Key performance area annual target

ENSURE GOOD 
GOVERNANCE

Adherence to legislation, 
ethical standards, best 
practices and internal policies

Strategy and APP developed 
and implemented

1

Risk mitigation plans executed 
on time and monitored

1 risk assessment

1 risk plan

4 risk reports

Organisational performance 
monitored

4 performance reports

Unqualified audit 1 unqualified audit

Develop an appropriate 
financial and supply chain 
management framework

Percentage budget spent 
within a financial year as per 
the APP

100%

Turnaround time for 
procurement of goods and 
services: 90 days for an open 
tender, 30 days for a closed 
tender, and 105 days for 
construction contracts

90%

Percentage of valid invoices 
paid within 30 days

100%

Turnaround time for emergency 
maintenance activities

5 days

Establish integrated ICT 
management systems

ICT systems availability to be 
at 95% all the time

95%

Implement Corporate Social 
investments (CSI)

Number of CSI initiatives 8

Number of internship positions 
created

3

Promote active stakeholder 
relations management and 
engagement

A stakeholder engagement 
framework developed and 
implemented

Conduct a stakeholder 
mapping exercise and draft 
an action plan

Adherence to SHE legal 
requirements

Number of SHE construction 
audits conducted per financial 
year

16

Environmental feasibility 
studies finalised

Environmental feasibility 
studies undertaken

Adherence to SHE legal 
requirements

Initiate EIA process for phase 2 
infrastructure 

Appointment and 
supervision (draft scoping 
report)

Environmental approval for 
phase 1F

Commission the EIA process 
for Phase 1F. EIA specialist 
studies report

Environmental approval for 
railway line to Phase 1F

Appointment and 
supervision. Draft scoping 
report

Water use licence (WUL) for 
1A  issued

WUL for Phase 1A  obtained

WUL for Phase  1F issued WUL for Phase 1F obtained

Develop and implement  
quality management system 
(ISO 9001:2000)

ISO 9001 obtained ISO 9001 accredited. 
Certification audit
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strategic Goal strategic objectives Key performance area annual target

SECURING ADEQUATE 
RESOURCES TO 
ENSURE FULLY 
SERVICED, COMPLIANT 
SITES

Securing of funding Number of funding 
applications submitted

2

Secure purchases or options 
on land parcels identified for 
development

Number of hectares acquired 121ha

Ensure that development of 
the Zone is aligned to the 
Master Plan

Approvals of engineering 
designs for Phase 1F by local 
authority

Phase 1F preliminary 
engineering design finalised

Initiate PDA applications for 
Phase 2A

Appoint and supervise 
consultants to undertake 
specialist studies

Ensure effective human 
resources management and 
development

Number of performance 
agreements aligned to the APP 
and signed

29

Number of performance 
assessments conducted

2

Employee wellness Approved policy and 
framework. Implementation 
of EAP programmes

DEVELOP A FULLY 
SERVICED, COMPLIANT 
INDUSTRIAL ESTATE

Infrastructure Development for 
all RBIDZ land parcels

Commissioning certificate 
for Phase 1A engineering 
infrastructure received

62ha serviced

Implementation of 
maintenance strategy for 
all completed engineering 
infrastructure 

Phase 1 A fence 
maintenance
platform maintenance

Stage 1 of Phase 1A electrical 
infrastructure completed. 
Contract management

Completion of electrical 
infrastructure of Stage 1  
and 2 of Phase 1A

Completion of Phase1A 
Stage 2 Electrical Engineering 
Infrastructure 

62ha serviced

Implementation of 
maintenance strategy for 
completed engineering 
infrastructure  

Maintain all completed civil 
engineering infrastructure in 
Quarter 4

Number of people employed 
for construction jobs by the 
RBIDZ (contract management)

600
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strategic Goal strategic objectives Key performance area annual target

ATTRACT NEW 
INVESTMENTS

Promote and facilitate investor 
recruitment

Number of leads generated 10

Implement marketing and 
branding initiatives

3 advertorial publications

1 Annual Report and 2 
newsletters

Airport advertisement

Number of investors signed 
within RBIDZ

3

Implement Business Retention 
and Support Initiatives

Implement investor project 
facilitation plans for the signed 
investors (one-stop shop)

4 project facilitation plans 
implemented

Conduct focused research and 
make available to potential 
investors and stakeholders

2

Business retention and 
aftercare initiatives 
implemented

6

Number of investors 
undertaking construction

1 investor undertaking 
construction

Number of youth trained as 
tradesmen

15

CONTRIBUTE TOWARDS 
JOB CREATION

To create decent jobs and 
facilitate skills transfer to local 
workforce

Number of jobs created by 
investors (solar water geysers 
plant)

90
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15.  pRoGRamme eXpendituRe

linking performance with budgets

Below is a synopsis of how different business units spent their allocations.

15.1.1. spending trends of the public entity 
The spending trend was assessed quarterly by analysing the percentage of the budget committed and the 
percentage of the budget spent at the end of the respective periods. Below is a summary of the quarterly 
assessments.

 
a) overall percentage spent 

percentage committed as at end of the quarter percentage spent at the end of the quarter

Quarter 1 40.73 10.15

Quarter 2 33.27 21.45

Quarter 3 26.68 29.00

Quarter 4 38.09 62.35

b) percentage spent per category
percentage committed for the year percentage spent for the year

Opex                             7.71 94.86

Capex                             24.89 83.46

Land acquisition                            82.50 0.00

Note: Actual spend includes roll-overs

15.1.2. A Synopsis of How Different Business Units Spent their Allocations

2014/2015 2013/2014

programme/activity/
objective

Budget actual
expenditure

(over)/under 
expenditure

Budget actual
expenditure

(over)/under 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Office of the CEO 19 464 15 298 4 166 23 178 16 319 6 859

Finance 9 336 14 227 (4 891) 10 812 8 110 2 702

Corporate Services 7 067 5 947 1 120 5 477 4 907 570

BDM 8 117 7 302 815 5 644 4 660 984

IPD 4 221 3 483 738 5 726 3 270 2 456

SHEQ 5 424 5 748 (324) 3 729 2 724 1 005

total  53 629 52 005 1 624 54 566 39 990 14 576
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15.1.3. capital expenditure

2014/2015 2013/2014

programme/
activity/

objective
Budget actual

expenditure
(over)/under 
expenditure Budget actual

expenditure
(over)/under 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Major capex 209 772 175 085 34 687 204 081 91 647 112 434

Land acquisition 99 004 - 99 004 146 289 - 146 289

total 308 776 175 085 133 691 350 370 91 647 258 723

16. summaRy oF Financial inFoRmation

16.1.1. Revenue collection 

2014/2015 2013/2014

sources of 
Revenue estimate 

actual 
amount 

collected
(over)/under 

collection estimate
actual 

amount 
collected

(over)/under 
collection

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Grants 68 170 68 170 - 95 164 55 164 40 000

Interest 5 200 23 503 (18 303) 4 750 9 388 (4 638)

Lease 
income

1 055 222 833 - - -

Other 150 163 (13) - 161 (161)

total 74 575 92 058 (17 483) 99 914 64 713 35 201

The grant income reflected above is that which was allocated to the Company by the Department of Economic 
Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs. During the third quarter of the financial year, the Company began 
to generate its own income in the form of lease income.  However, due to this being minimal, the Company is still 
dependent on grant funding for operations and capital projects.  Included in the ‘Other’ is revenue generated from 
the sale of tender documents, sale of minor assets, claims from insurance, refunds from the Sector Education 
and Training Authority (SETA) and investor income (based on Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) milestones).

16.1.2. capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan 
infrastructure development
The RBIDZ has continued making good progress in the 2014/2015 financial year with the implementation of 
engineering infrastructure. The highlights were the completion of the Phase 1A Stage 2A bulk earthworks project, 
Phase 1A Stage 1 Electrical Engineering & ICT Services, and the installation of civil and electrical engineering 
infrastructure on an additional 20ha in Phase 1A, making 42ha fully serviced industrial land available to investors. 

The planning and installation of engineering infrastructure has continued for the remainder of Phase 1A and 
Phase 1F. 
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16.1.3. capital plan variances 
Three projects that were planned to be completed 
in the 2014/2015 financial year were not completed. 
They were:
• Phase 1A Stage 2B Civil Engineering Services 

Project that was planned to be completed by 
the end of March 2015. The project was reliant 
on the completion of the Phase 1A Stage 2 Bulk 
Earthworks Project before the installation of 
civil engineering services could commence. The 
project commenced in September 2014 and 
was 77% complete by March 2015.

• Phase 1A Stage 2B Electrical Engineering & 
ICT Services Project that was planned to be 
completed by the end of March 2015. The 
installation of electrical and ICT services is 
reliant on the completion of road profiles and 
pavement profiles of the Phase 1A Stage 2B Civil 
Engineering Services that had to be completed 
before the installation of electrical services could 
commence. The contract for the installation of 
electrical engineering services to Phase 1A Stage 
2B was awarded in February 2015.

• Detail design of engineering services for Phase 
1F that was planned for completion by the 
end of March 2015. The utilisation of wetland 
areas in Phase 1F first had to be resolved in the 
form of a WUL in terms of the National Water 
Act before the detail design could be finalised. 
A WUL application was submitted to DWA in 
March 2015 and the detail design for phase 1F 
is expected to be completed in August 2015. 

16.1.4. maintenance of infrastructure
Multi-year service contracts are in place to 
undertake preventative maintenance activities for 
the Phase 1A perimeter fence and Phase 1A Stage 
1 Bulk Earthworks platform.

Contracts are in place to undertake preventative 
maintenance activities for all installed electrical and 
ICT infrastructure in Phase 1A. 

Maintenance contracts have been prepared to 
be advertised in the first quarter of 2015/2016 to 
undertake preventative maintenance activities for 
the Phase 1A Civil Engineering Infrastructure from 
July 2015. 
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1. intRoduction
The RBIDZ has established a solid corporate 
governance framework through a Shareholder 
Compact/Funding Agreement with the Executive 
Authority, a Board Charter and Charters for each 
Board Committee. The executive management is 
also governed by a charter. The reporting protocols 
are well structured throughout the organisation. 

2. eXecutive authoRity
The entity reports against the set targets in the APP 
on a quarterly basis to EDTEA. Written reports are 
submitted 15 days after the end of the quarter, after 
which a meeting to discuss the reports is organised 
by EDTEA. During the financial year under review, 
all four reports were submitted timeously to EDTEA 
and the CEO attended all four meetings to discuss 
progress against set targets.

3. the accountinG authoRity/ 
BoaRd 
The Board has an independent role of accountability 
to the shareholder and is responsible as the 
primary oversight body of the Company. The Board 
appreciates that strategy, risk, performance and 
sustainability are inseparable, and gives effect to 
this by:
• Contributing to, and approving the strategy; 
• Satisfying itself that the strategy and business 

plans do not give rise to risks that have not 
been thoroughly assessed by management;

• Identifying key performance and risk areas; 
and 

• Ensuring that the strategy will result in 
sustainable outcomes.

Role of the Board 
The Board members have the specific responsibilities 
set out in the PFMA, the Companies Act and the King III 
Report on Corporate Governance, including:
• The duty of utmost care to ensure reasonable 

protection of the assets and records of the Company; 

• To act with fidelity, honesty, integrity and in the 
best interests of the Company in managing the 
financial affairs of the Company; 

• To, on request, disclose to the executive 
authority responsible for the Company or 
the Legislature to which the Company is 
accountable, all material facts, including those 
reasonably discoverable, which in any way 
may influence the decisions or actions of the 
executive authority or legislature;

• To act as the focal point for, and custodian 
of, corporate governance by managing its 
relationship with management, the shareholders 
and other stakeholders of the Company along 
sound corporate governance principles; 

• To ensure that the Company is and is seen to be 
a responsible corporate citizen by having regard 
to not only the financial aspects of the business 
but also the impact that business operations 
have on the environment and the society within 
which it operates; 

• To be responsible for the governance of risk; 
• To be responsible for information technology (IT) 

governance; 
• To ensure that the Company complies with 

applicable laws and considers adherence to 
non-binding rules and standards; and

• To ensure the integrity of the Company’s 
Annual Report and to appoint and evaluate the 
performance of the Chief Executive Officer.

The Board acts collectively and does not assume 
the functions of management, which remain the 
responsibility of the executive directors, officers 
and other members of senior management.

Board charter
The Board has adopted a Board Charter setting out 
its roles and responsibilities.

The tabled on the next page discloses relevant 
information on the members of the Audit and Risk 
Committee.
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composition of the Board 

name designation date 
appointed

date 
Resigned Qualifications area of 

expertise
Board

directorships (list 
the entities)

other 
committees 
(e.g. audit 

committee)

no. of 
meetings 
attended

Ms P.B. 
Kunene

Chairperson 1/7/2012 - BA, BA 
Honours 
(Econ), 
MSc (Dev 
Economics)

Management, 
banking, 
public sector 

SanParks;
Masa-A-Sele 
Energy; Barahaka 
Investments;
Agape Rema 
Electrical Work; 
Barahaka Trading

6

Mr M.C. 
Clark 

Deputy 
Chairperson

1/7/2012 - B.Soc.Sc, Pg 
Dip IR

Management, 
public sector, 
governance

KZN Growth Fund 
Managers;
Black Balance 
Projects;
Market Demand 
Trading 429;
Global Pact Trading 
545;
Aquaquad;
Vuka Planning 
Africa;
Black Balance 
Logistics;
Black Balance 
Investments;
Black Balance 
Consulting;
Imvusa Trading 
230;
Coalition Trading 
596;
Dube Tradeport;
The Stables Wine 
Estate Airport 
Cellar

Chairperson 
of Human 
Resources and 
Remuneration 
Committee, 
Member of 
Audit and Risk 
Committee

6

Ms T.N. 
Eboka

Member 1/7/2012 - BS (Appl 
Mathematics), 
BS (Textile 
Engineering), 
MBA, Senior 
Executive 
Programme 
(Harvard), 
Certificate 
in Change 
Management 
(Cornell)

Management, 
Engineering

Stefanutti Stocks 
Holdings

Chairperson of 
Infrastructure 
Committee

5
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name designation date 
appointed

date 
Resigned Qualifications area of 

expertise
Board

directorships (list 
the entities)

other 
committees 
(e.g. audit 

committee)

no. of 
meetings 
attended

Mr Z.L. 
Fihlani

Member 1/7/2012 - BCom, 
BCompt 
(Hons), CTA, 
HDip Tax Law 
MComm (Tax), 
CA (SA)

Management, 
auditing, 
finance

EVI Capital 
Partners;
Pelchem;
Export Credit 
Insurance 
Corporation Of 
South Africa;
EVI Capital 
Foundation;
EVI Capital 
Facilities Trading;
EVI Pig Farms;
EVI Livestock 
Farms;
EVI Poultry Farms

Chairperson of 
Audit and Risk 
Committee

4

Mr A.A. 
Mahlalutye

Member 1/7/2012 - MSc Fin Mgt, 
BSc (QS), 
MBL, Dip 
Company 
Direction, 
M(Fin Mgt), 
Cert in Econ 
Reg, Cert in 
Develop & and 
Mgt of NGOs

Management, 
economic 
zones, 
Finance, 
Economics, 
Strategy

Ubudlelwane 
Capital 
Investments; 
Bravorox 100;
Ulwazi Lunzulu 
Consult; Umgeni 
Water Board 

Social and 
Ethics 
Committee

2

Mr A.S. 
Makhanya

Member 1/7/2012 - NatDip Civil 
Eng, HDip Civil 
Eng, BCom 
Econ, PgDip 
Marketing, 
MBA

Management, 
engineering, 
water and 
effluent 
services

Ndu and Sbunhle 
Investments;
Abaphumeleli 
Trading 269;
Sbunhle Trading;
MKM Investments 
and Trading

Social and 
Ethics 
Committee

5

Mr E.F. 
Mbatha

Member 1/7/2012 - BA and MA in 
Governance 
and Political 
Transformation

Management, 
local 
government

Bhambhatha 
Investments;
Musa Dladla 
Foundation
Rumdu 
Construction;
Ubhedu Holdings;
Kuzakahle Trading;
Bitline SA 797;
Esikhawini Traders;
Cleancing 
Laboratory;
Tradebush 
Investments No 27;
Business Against 
Crime Zululand

Chairperson 
of Social 
and Ethics 
Committee

6

Mr K. Naidoo Member 1/7/2012 - BCom, Cert 
(Comp Aud)

Finance, 
management

HR and 
Remuneration 
Committee

6
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name designation date 
appointed

date 
Resigned Qualifications area of 

expertise
Board

directorships (list 
the entities)

other 
committees 
(e.g. audit 

committee)

no. of 
meetings 
attended

Ms M.J. Ndlovu Member 1/7/2012 - MBA graduate 
with degrees 
and diplomas 
in Human 
Resources 
Management and 
Transportation

Management,
Leadership, 
Governance, 
Human 
Resources

Ndlovu and Co 
Holding; 
The South African 
Dental Association;
Lamentation Creation

Audit and Risk 
Committee

5

Ms M.T.B. 
Ndlovu

Member 1/7/2012 - LL.B, Cert (Local 
Govt Mgt)
Admitted Attorney, 
Admitted 
Conveyancer

Management, 
Law, Local 
Government

Imbasa Legal 
Consulting

HR and 
Remuneration 
Committee

5

Ms N.G. 
Sithole 

Member 1/7/2012 - BCom, LLB, 
MBA

Management, 
Logistics

Up-Front Investments 
165;
Thekweni Open For 
Business; Legapa 
Investment Holdings

Infrastructure 
Committee

5

Mr P. 
Motsoahae

CEO 1/12/2013 BA Admin; MA in 
Town Planning & 
Regional Planning; 
PG Diploma 
in Shipping, 
Transportation 
& Logistics - 
International 
Maritime & 
Transport Academy 
(Rotterdam, 
Netherlands) 
& Executive 
Development 
Programme - 
Supply Chain 
Management

Transport 
and Logistics 
Management

Basia Afrique Artifacts; 
Seruisa Gems;
Qalo Consulting 
Services;
Qedo Consulting 
Services

6

Mr M. Nkopane CFO 5/10/2012 31/1/2015 BCom, MBL, 
Management 
Advancement 
Programme 
Certificate

Management, 
Finance

Families Learning 
Together;
Mohato Trading

5

committees 

name audit and Risk 
committee

social and ethics  
committee

infrastructure and 
investment committee

hR and Remuneration 
committee

meetings 
held

meetings 
attended

meetings  
held

meetings 
attended

meetings 
held

meetings 
attended

meetings 
held

meetings 
attended

Ms P.B. Kunene - - - - - - - -

Mr M.C. Clark1 5 4 - - - - 7 7

Ms T.N. Eboka1 - - - - 2 2 - -

Mr Z.L. Fihlani1,2 5 5 - - - - 2* 2*

Mr A.A. Mahlalutye - - 2 2 - - - -

Mr A.S. Makhanya - - 2 2 - - - -

Mr E.F. Mbatha1 - - 2 2 - - - -

Mr K. Naidoo 5 3 - - - - 7 7

Ms M.J. Ndlovu2 5 4 - - - - 2* 2*

Mrs M.T.B. Ndlovu - - - - - - 7 7

Ms N.G. Sithole - - - - 2 1 - -

Mr S. Mkhize3 - - - - 2 2 - -

* Assisted with interviews for CFO.
1 – Committee Chairperson
2 – Attended meetings without being a member of the Committee or for a special purpose (e.g. recruitment)
3 – Non-director
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Remuneration of Board members
The remuneration of directors is determined by the shareholder. The Company reimburses or does travel bookings 
for directors other than those in the employ of Government departments. During the course of the year, the method 
of remuneration for Board meetings was amended to include a retainer that is only paid if the scheduled meeting 
is attended.  

name Remuneration other allowance other 
Re-imbursements total

Ms P.B. Kunene 1 528 024 - - 528 024

Mr M.C. Clark 396 236 - - 396 236

Ms T.N. Eboka 138 938 - - 138 938

Mr Z.L. Fihlani 235 317 - - 235 317

Mr A.A. Mahlalutye 58 970 - - 58 970

Mr A.S. Makhanya 133 606 - - 133 606

Mr E.F. Mbatha 174 877 - - 174 877

Mr K. Naidoo 2 - - - -

Ms M.J. Ndlovu 191 048 - - 191 048

Mrs M.T.B. Ndlovu 147 125 - - 147 125

Ms NG Sithole 3 110 899 - - 110 899

Mr P Motsoahae 2 645 940 - 85 689 2 731 630

Mr MR Nkopane 1 351 709 12 000 37 180 1 400 890

1 – Remuneration paid to Standard Bank Limited
2 – No remuneration payable as official represents a Government department
3 – Remuneration paid to Transnet Foundation

4. RisK manaGement 
In the reporting year, the glaring risks were the finalisation of land transfer for Phase 1A and the contract expiry 
of two executives at the end of the financial year. The land transfer issue has a bearing on the entity’s ability to 
sustain business. One of the key lessons has been that with the review of the sale agreement and the service level 
agreement, the costs kept escalating. Stakeholder engagement has been given priority in order to fast-track the 
transfer processes and it is beginning to yield positive results.

The imminent departure of two executives has had a bearing on business continuity as the institutional memory 
will be eroded to some extent. To this regard, a recruitment process was initiated to fill the vacant positions.

5. inteRnal audit and audit committees   
The Company has adopted an Internal Audit Charter, which is augmented by the Audit and Risk Committee 
Charter to ensure that the internal audit function is an independent appraisal function established to examine and 
evaluate the company’s processes as a service to the Company in the effective discharge of its responsibilities. 
Its objectives include promoting effective risk management and operational efficiency at reasonable cost, in 
accordance with the standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Audit established by the Institute of Internal 
Auditors (IIA).  

The internal audit function inter alia: evaluates governance processes; assesses the effectiveness of risk 
management; analyses and evaluates business processes, and controls and provides information on fraud, 
corruption, unethical behaviour and irregularities. The function, which is outsourced to the KwaZulu-Natal Treasury 
Internal Audit Unit, reports to the Audit and Risk Committee.  
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During the year, internal audits and/or follow-up 
audits were conducted on Performance Information, 
Asset Management, Supply Chain Management, 
Human Resource Management, the Employee 
Performance Reward System, Conflicts of Interest, 
Risk Management (ISO 3100), Infrastructure 
Planning and Development, Business Development 
and Marketing and IT General Controls. 

The functions of the Audit and Risk Committee 
are set out in a Committee Charter, which is based 
on the recommendations of the King III Report on 
Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of 
Directors and which was reviewed and updated 
during the year. 

The review included a revision to emphasise 
the Committee’s obligations in regard to the 
Governance of IT. 

The key functions of the Committee are:
• To assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight 

functions in terms of the PFMA, including 
to assist the Chief Executive and Executive 
Management in carrying out their functions as 
prescribed in the Public Finance Management 
Act, 1999, Sections 38(1), 76 paragraph 4 (d) 
and 77, Treasury Regulations Section 3.1.8, 
Corporate Governance and Company’s Act of 
2008, as amended; 

• To evaluate the adequacy and efficiency of the 

internal control systems, accounting practices, 
information systems and auditing processes; 

• To give an opinion and introduce measures 
that may serve to enhance the credibility and 
objectivity of financial statements and reports 
prepared with reference to the affairs of the 
Company; 

• To facilitate, promote and maintain effective 
communication and work relations with the 
Board of Directors, management and the 
internal and external auditors; 

• To monitor compliance with laws, and the 
code of business conduct and regulations; 

• To publicly issue a statement to the 
shareholders confirming the effectiveness of 
the internal financial controls and provide a 
written assessment of the Company’s system 
of internal control; 

• To review an integrated Annual Report 
with special emphasis on the impact of the 
Company in the economic, environmental and 
social spheres; 

• To ensure that the Company has implemented 
an effective policy and plan for risk 
management that will enhance the Company’s 
ability to achieve its strategic objectives; and 

• To ensure that the disclosure regarding risk is 
comprehensive, timely, and relevant.  

The table below discloses relevant information on the members of the Audit and Risk Committee

name Qualifications internal or 
external

if internal, 
position in the 
public entity

date First 
appointed

end of 
appointment

Mr Z. Fihlani1 BCom, BCompt 
(Hons), CTA, HDip 
Tax Law, MComm 
(Tax), CA (SA)

External Non-executive 
director

5/10/2012 2015 AGM

Mr M.C. Clark BSoc Sc, Pg Dip IR External Non-executive 
director

5/10/2012 2015 AGM

Ms M.J. 
Ndlovu

MBA graduate 
with degrees 
and diplomas in 
Human Resources 
Management and 
Transportation

External Non-executive 
director

5/10/2012 2015 AGM

1 – Chairperson of the Committee
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In accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act 71 of 2008, the members of the Committee are 
appointed/reappointed at each Annual General 
Meeting.

6. compliance With laWs and  
ReGulations
The Legal Manager/Company Secretary is 
responsible for the Compliance function. The 
Company has adopted a comprehensive 
Compliance Policy. Research is conducted on 
applicable laws and various open source databases 
are used to determine upcoming legislation as well 
as relevant judgments. 

Checklists are compiled on key legislation, 
which is prioritised based on a risk-based approach. 
Compliance issues are reported to the Board 
through the Audit and Risk Committee on a 
quarterly basis.

7. FRaud and coRRuption  
The Company has adopted a comprehensive Fraud 
Prevention Policy incorporating various elements 
of a Fraud Prevention Plan as well as a specific 
Fraud Prevention Plan. This includes a response 
plan to allegations of fraud and corruption, probity 
investigations of prospective staff and even 
suppliers, creating an open and transparent culture, 
protection of whistle blowers, annual declarations 
of financial interests as well as declarations at 
certain meetings, mandatory reporting of gifts and 
gratuities received by staff and encouragement 
of staff to report suspected fraud and corruption. 
The Company has a whistleblowing hotline and the 
Fraud Prevention Policy provides for the persons to 
whom fraud is to be reported.  

Where fraud is reported, the Policy provides 
for the investigation of the matter by a person 
independent of the division in which the fraud is 
suspected. 

8. minimisinG conFlict oF inteRest
In addition to the aforementioned Fraud Prevention 
Policy, the Company has adopted a Code of 
Conduct, which also addresses the issue of conflicts 
of interest. These are further supported by a Supply 

Chain Management Policy that also seeks to avoid 
undisclosed conflicts of interest and persons being 
in a position to make decisions where they have a 
conflict of interest. The policy relies on gifts and 
conflicts of interest being declared. 

With regard to external parties, the Company’s 
procurement processes require that potential 
service providers complete and sign a form 
indicating any conflicts of interest in the processes 
or any linkages they may have with directors or staff 
members of the Company. 

During the year, the Company requested the 
internal auditors to conduct a conflict of interest 
audit to ensure that no undisclosed conflicts of 
interest exist between the directors and staff of the 
Company and any of its suppliers. This was a first 
for the Company, which is now being extended to 
other organs of state in the Province.

9. code oF conduct 
The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct 
that is applicable to all directors and staff and is 
intended to guide the behaviour that the Company 
expects in its interaction with all internal and 
external stakeholders, with special emphasis on the 
interactions of internal stakeholders with each other 
and with the communities within which the Company 
operates. The Code of Conduct seeks to ensure 
that behaviour is guided by socially established 
principles of honesty, fairness, accountability, non-
discrimination and respect for human dignity. 

The Code requires staff members to report 
dishonest activities and provides for the 
investigation of all infringements of the Code, 
followed by the taking of appropriate remedial 
action, which may include disciplinary action, 
termination of relationships with a supplier, or taking 
steps to prevent a reoccurrence.  

10. health, saFety and 
enviRonmental issues  
During the 2014/2015 financial year, the RBIDZ 
rolled out three major infrastructure projects, namely 
bulk earthworks, civil engineering and electrical 
projects in Phase 1A. In line with the RBIDZ’s good 
governance and SHEQ principles, contractors were 
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required to exercise full control of their activities 
and processes. These include risk identification 
and mitigation, and adherence to all SHE legislation 
and policies. Adherence to health and safety 
specifications was measured through internal and 
external SHE audits. Minor incidents associated 
with spillages and improper waste management 
practices were recorded this financial year and all 
were investigated and closed out using the RBIDZ 
Incident Management System and lessons learnt 
were shared with service providers and contractors.
The above infrastructure projects achieved more 
than 500 000 man-hours without an injury. This 
milestone was achieved through implementation of 
various measures, including:
1. Job task observations;
2. Detailed risk assessments;
3. Periodic inspections;
4. Internal  and external auditing;
5. Toolbox talks;
6. Training of contractors on key legislative   
 changes/requirements; and
7. Sharing of interactive hazards.

The highlight for the financial year was the 
attainment of SABS ISO 9001 certification status. 
This certification was awarded to the Company 
in March 2015 after more than two years of hard 
work and dedication by all employees. Being ISO 
9001 certified will give assurance to our investors 
and stakeholders that the company’s processes 
are documented, monitored, and subscribe to 
international norms of continual improvement. 

Implementation of ISO requirements assists in 
improving quality of service, customer satisfaction 
and reduction in organisational costs.

During this reporting period, environmental 
feasibility studies were undertaken for the planned 
development of Phase 2A. The overall findings 
indicated that the site is feasible for development. 
No environmental fatal flaws or risks were identified.
As required by various environmental and related 
legislation, the following WUL applications and EIA 
processes were initiated:
•	 The WUL application process for the Medway 

Road Expansion project;
•	 The WUL application process for the 

installation of bulk engineering services in 
Phase 1F; and

•	 The EIA for the installation of bulk engineering 
services in Phase 1F.

11. company/BoaRd secRetaRy 
The Company’s Legal Manager functions as its 
Company Secretary, with functions that include: 
Being the central source of guidance and advice 
to the Board and within the Company on matters 
of good governance and changes in legislation; 
responsibility for Board and Committee Charters; 
preparation of the annual work plan and meeting 
schedule; circulation of Board and Committee 
papers; induction, orientation and ongoing training 
of directors; ensuring returns are provided to the 
Companies and Intellectual Property Commission; 
recording, approval and circulation of minutes and 
assisting with Board evaluations. 
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ceRtiFication By company secRetaRy
I, the undersigned, K.N. Harvey, in my capacity as Company Secretary, certify that the Company has lodged with 
the Companies and Intellectual Property Commission all such returns as are required of a public company in terms 
of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, and that all such returns are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, 
correct and up-to-date.

While a revised Memorandum of Incorporation was submitted to the Companies and Intellectual Property 
Commission, the said Memorandum was rejected by the Companies Intellectual Property Commission and shall 
be resubmitted once the requirements of the Commission have been met.

mR Kn haRvey
COMPANY SECRETARY

12. social ResponsiBility 
During the reporting period, the Company embarked on various Corporate Social Responsibility projects in 
environmental sustainability, community development as well as youth development through outreach programmes 
to the schools. These included:
• A contribution to graduation ceremonies at Ziphozonke High School and Esikhawini TVET College; 
• A donation of school uniforms to Isiphephelo Primary School; 
• A donation of sanitary pads for girls at four schools; 
• Educational workshops at four schools; 
• Raising money in the Cancer Shavathon; and 
• Hosting public blood donation drives at the Company’s offices. 

13. audit committee RepoRt 
 We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2015.

audit and Risk committee Responsibility
The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from Section 51(1)(a)
(ii) of the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13. The Committee also reports that it has 
adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit and Risk Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in 
compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein, except that we have 
not reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices. 

The Effectiveness of Internal Control
Our review of the findings of the Internal Audit work, which was based on the risk assessments conducted in the 
public entity, revealed certain weaknesses, which were then raised with the public entity.
The following internal audit work was completed during the year under review:
•	 Audit on Performance Information;
•	 Audit and follow-up on Asset Management;
•	 Audit on Supply Chain Management;
•	 Audit and follow-up on Human Resource Management;
•	 Special Review on Employee Performance Reward System – Bonus Payments; 
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•	 Conflict of Interest Review;
•	 ISO 31000 – Risk Management audit;
•	 Follow-up audit on Infrastructure Planning and Development;
•	 Follow-up audit on Business Development and Marketing; and
•	 Follow-up audit on IT General Controls.

The only issue raised was in regard to ICT, which is being addressed by Management. 

The Committee is proud that the Conflict of Interest review, which was conducted at the request of the 
Company, was the first to be conducted by any entity where Provincial Treasury is the Internal Auditor and 
that the review is now being rolled out to other entities. 

in-year management and monthly/Quarterly Report
The Company has reported monthly and quarterly to the Treasury, as required by the PFMA.  

evaluation of Financial statements
We have reviewed the Annual Financial Statements prepared by the Company.

auditoR’s RepoRt
We have reviewed the Company’s implementation plan for audit issues raised in the prior year and we are 
satisfied that the matters have been adequately resolved. 

The Audit and Risk Committee concurs and accepts the conclusions of the External Auditor on the Annual 
Financial Statements and is of the opinion that the audited Annual Financial Statements be accepted and 
read together with the report of the External Auditor.

mR Zola Fihlani
CHAIRPERSON OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE, 29 JULY 2015
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1. intRoduction 
The Corporate Services Business Unit is responsible for ensuring effective human resources management 
and development within the Company. Among its functions, the Unit must strengthen employer-employee 
relationships in order to maximise employee performance in service of the Company’s strategic objectives. 
The unit not only manages existing staff but it also plans for changes that will affect future staffing needs.  

During the year, permanent employment in the Company rose from 26 to 29, with five new appointments 
and two departures. Two Executive Manager positions were also combined into one. At the end of the 
reporting period, the Company had six vacant positions, one of which was filled the day after the end of the 
reporting period. Certain positions were not filled as a result of cost-cutting measures in the Province, which 
required that only vacancies in essential posts be filled.

During the year, the Company also provided four internships and employed one temporary staff member.   

2. human ResouRce oveRsiGht statistics 
personnel cost by Business units

Business units
total Budget for the 

Business unit 
(excl. vat) (R’000)

personnel actual 
expenditure 

(R’000)

personnel exp. 
as a % of total 

Budget
no. of 

employees

Office of the CEO  
(including bonus allocation for all 
business units)

19 464 7 403 38 6

IPD 4 221 2 401 57 3

BDM 8 117 3 901 48 5

SHEQ 5 424 1 843 34 4

Finance 9 336 5 124 55 9

Corporate Services 7 067 3 498 49 7

total 53 629 24 170 45 34

The above includes the interns and temporary staff members.

personnel cost by salary Band

salary Bands personnel expenditure 
(R’000)

% of personnel exp. to 
total personnel cost

no. of 
employees

Top management (Bands D4-E4) 9 646 40 6

Senior management (Bands D1-D3)   10 100 42 11

Skilled (Bands C1-C5) 3 141 13 7

Semi-skilled (Bands A1-B5) 1 283 5 10

total 24 170 100 34

The above includes the interns and temporary staff members.
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performance Rewards

salary Bands performance 
Rewards

personnel 
expenditure

(R’000)
% of performance Rewards  

to total personnel cost

Top management (Grades D4-E4) 686 9 220 7.4

Senior management (Grades D1-D3) 627 9 654 6.4

Skilled (Grades C1-C5) 179 3 002 5.9

Semi-skilled (Grades A1-B5) 54 1 228 4.4

total 1 546 23 103 6.6

The above are the rewards paid for 2013/2014. The performance rewards for 2014/2015 are only payable after the 
Company’s Annual Financial Statements and Performance Report have been audited and approved. Any bonuses 
for the 2014/2015 financial year will thus only be payable after August 2015.

training costs

Business units
personnel 

expenditure 
(R’000)

training 
expenditure

(R’000)

training 
expenditure as a 
% of personnel 

cost

no. of 
employees 

trained
avg. training cost 

per employee (R’000)

Office of the CEO 7 403 82 1.1 4 21

IPD 2 401 17 0.7 1 17

BDM 3 901 110 2.8 5 22

SHEQ 1 843 27 1.5 2 14

Finance 5 124 111 2.1 4 28

Corporate Services 3 498 104 3.0 6 17

total 24 170 452 1.9 21 22

employment and vacancies

Business units 2013/2014       
no. of employees

2014/2015 
approved  and 
Funded posts

2014/2015    
no. of 

employees
2014/2015 
vacancies % of vacancies

Office of the CEO 5 6 6 0 0

IPD 2 5 2 3 60

BDM 3 4 4 0 0

SHEQ 1 2* 2 0* 0

Finance 8 10 8 2 20

Corporate Services 7 8 7 1 12

total 26 35 29 6 17

*During the year, the positions of Executive Manager: SHEQ and Executive Manager: Business Development and Marketing were combined. 
This affects both the vacancy rate for SHEQ (where there were three posts that were reduced to two) and the D4-E4 band (where the number of 
positions declined from eight to seven).
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salary Bands 2013/2014    
no. of employees

2014/2015 
approved and 
Funded posts

2014/2015  
no. of employees

2014/2015 
vacancies % of vacancies

Top management
(Bands D4–E4)

6 7* 6 1 14

Senior 
management
(Bands D1-D3)

10 13 11 2 15

Skilled
(Bands C1-C5)

5 8 7 1 13

Semi-skilled 
(Bands A1-B5)

5 7 5 2 29

total 26 35 29 6 17

The above tables exclude interns and the temporary staff member.

* During the year the positions of Executive Manager: SHEQ and Executive Manager: Business Development and Marketing were combined. This 
affects the vacancy rate for SHEQ (where there were three posts that were reduced to two), the D4 – E4 band (where the number of positions 
declined from eight to seven) and the total positions (reduced from 36 to 35).

number of employees and vacancies per salary Band



RICHARDS BAY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT ZONE ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015

GATEWAY TO WORLD MARKETS

58

1. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

Statement of Responsibility for the Annual Financial Statements for the Year 
Ended 31 March 2015

The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation of the public entity’s Annual Financial Statements 
and for the judgements made in this information.

The Accounting Authority is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control designed 
to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the Annual Financial Statements.

In my opinion, the financial statements fairly reflect the operations of the public entity for the financial year ended 
31 March 2015.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the Annual Financial Statements of the 
public entity. 

The RBIDZ Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 have been audited by the external 
auditors and their report is presented on page 61.

The Annual Financial Statements of the public entity set out on page 65 to page 88 have been approved.

MR PhuMELELE MOTSOAhAE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone
29 July 2015

MS BONgIwE KuNENE
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD 
Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone
29 July 2015

PART E:  
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY BY ThE DIRECTORS 
for the year ended 31 March 2015

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared by management in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the South African Companies Act 71 of 2008. They are based on 
appropriate accounting policies, which have been consistently applied and which are supported by reasonable and 
prudent judgements and estimates.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of Annual Financial Statements that fairly present the state of affairs 
and the results of the Company. The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on these 
Annual Financial Statements, in conformity with International Audit Standards.

INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Board of Directors is responsible for the Company’s systems of internal control. These systems are designed to 
provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance, as to the integrity and reliability of the financial statements, to safeguard 
and maintain accountability of its assets and to detect and minimise significant fraud, potential liability, loss and material 
misstatement while complying with applicable laws and regulations.

The controls concentrate on critical risk areas. These areas are identified by operational management and are monitored 
by the directors. All controls relating to the critical risk areas are closely monitored and subject to internal audit. Nothing 
has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that a material breakdown in the controls within the company has 
occurred during the year.

PERFORMANCE MANAgEMENT
The Company reports on its own performance against pre-determined objectives as contained in the Annual Performance 
Plan for 2014/2015 financial year and in accordance with the Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 as amended. 
The performance report is tabled on a quarterly basis to the following structures: Audit & Risk Management, the 
Accounting Authority (RBIDZ Board) and the Executive Authority (Department of Economic Development, Tourism and 
Environmental Affairs).

BOARD REMuNERATION
The remuneration of directors and senior managers is set out in note 18 to the Annual Financial Statements.

The Annual Financial Statements set out on pages 65 to 88, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were 
approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

MS BONgIwE KuNENE 
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD, 29 July 2015
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INDEPENDENT AuDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholder of Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone Company SOC Limited 

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone Company SOC Limited, which 
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2015, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement 
of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Board of Directors, which constitutes the accounting authority, is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation 
of these financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required 
by the Companies Act 71 of 2008 of South Africa, as amended and the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999, 
as amended, and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, the General Notice issued in terms thereof and International 
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Richards Bay 
Industrial Development Zone Company SOC Limited as at 31 March 2015, and its financial performance and its cash 
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required 
by the Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 and the Companies Act 71 of 2008 of South Africa.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued in terms thereof, we report the following findings relevant to 
performance against predetermined objectives, compliance with laws and regulations and internal controls but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion.

Predetermined Objectives
We performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the information in the Annual 
Performance Report contained in the Annual Report.

The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the overall criteria of usefulness 
and reliability. The usefulness of information in the Annual Performance Report relates to whether it is presented in 
accordance with National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance is consistent with 
planned objectives. The usefulness of information further relates to whether indications and targets are measurable and 
relevant as required by the National Treasury Framework for managing programme performance information.

The reliability of the information in respect to the objectives is assessed to determine whether it adequately reflects the 
facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and complete).

There were no material findings on the Annual Performance Report concerning the usefulness and reliability of the 
information.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
We performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity has complied with applicable laws and regulations regarding 
financial matters, financial management and other related matters. We did not identify any instances of material non-
compliance with specific matters in key applicable laws and regulations as set out in the General Notice issued in terms 
of the PAA.

Internal Control
We considered internal control relevant to our audit of the financial statements and compliance with l aws and regulations.

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we considered sufficiently significant for inclusion in this 
report.

Other Report Required by the Companies Act
As part of our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015, we have read the Directors’ Report 
for the purpose of identifying whether there are material inconsistencies between this report and the audited financial 
statements. The Directors’ Report is the responsibility of the directors. Based on reading the Directors’ Report we have 
not identified material inconsistencies between this report and the audited financial statements. However, we have not 
audited the Directors’ Report and accordingly do not express an opinion thereon.

Per DESMOND MSOMI
Ngubane & Co.
Registered Auditors
Chartered Accountants (SA)
Durban 
29 July 2015
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REPORT OF ThE DIRECTORS
for the year ended 31 March 2015

The directors have pleasure in presenting  their report on the activities of the Company for the year ended 31 
March  2015.

NATuRE OF BuSINESS AND OPERATIONS
Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone Company SOC Limited was formed to undertake the development of 
industrial land in the Richards Bay area.

FINANCIAL  RESuLTS
The results for the year are reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income set out on page 66. In summary, 
the Company had no operating surplus or deficit for the financial year. An after tax deficit of R388 069 has been 
reported.

ShARE CAPITAL
Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone Company SOC Limited has 1 000 authorised and issued share capital. 
The share capital is as follows: 
1 000 shares –  Province of KwaZulu-Natal represented by its Department of Economic Development, Tourism 

and Environmental  Affairs.

DIRECTORATE
Date Appointed

Ms B. Kunene (Chairperson) 1 July 2012

Mr M. Clark 1 July 2012

Ms T. Eboka 1 July 2012

Mr Z. Fihlani 1 July 2012

Mr A. Mahlalutye 1 July 2012

Mr S. Makhanya 1 July 2012

Mr E. Mbatha 1 July 2012

Mr K. Naidoo 1 July 2012

Ms J. Ndlovu 1 July 2012

Ms M. Ndlovu 1 July 2012

Ms N. Sithole 1 July 2012

Mr P. Motsoahae (CEO) 1 December 2013
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EXTERNAL AuDITORS 
Ngubane & Co.

INTERNAL AuDITORS
KZN Provincial Treasury: Internal Audit Services.

SECRETARY
The Company Secretary is Mr KN Harvey.

Business address:    Postal address:
Captains Walk Building    Private Bag X1005
Pioneer Road     Richards Bay 
Tuzi Gazi Waterfront   3900
Richards Bay

gOINg CONCERN
On the basis of the Annual Financial Statements for the 2014/2015 financial period and information regarding the 
forthcoming financial year, the directors have every reason to believe that the Company remains a going concern.

SuBSEQuENT EVENTS
There are no subsequent events.

INFORMATION DISCLOSED IN TERMS OF SECTION 55(2)(b) OF ThE PFMA
No irregular expenditure was incurred by the Company in the year ended 31 March 2015.

REPORT OF ThE DIRECTORS
for the year ended 31 March 2015
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ASSETS Notes 2015 2014

R R

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 6,270 7,860

Deposit 4 201,116 201,116

Current Assets 427,225,363 520,181,948

Accounts receivable 5 59,738,525 58,890,531

VAT receivable 12   13,948,182 -

Cash and cash equivalents 6 353,538,656 461,176,479

Deferred taxation 7 - 114,937

Total Assets 427,432,749 520,390,924

EQuITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and Reserves 150,817,303 151,205,372

Share capital 8 1,000 1,000

Share premium 9 151,200,000 151,200,000

Accumulated (deficit)/surplus (383,697) 4,372

Non-current Liabilities 

Deposits payable 11.1 5,000 -

Current Liabilities 276,610,446 369,185,552

Deferred income 10 255,873,524 347,572,376

Deffered taxation 7 273,132 -

Accounts payable 11 20,463,790 12,122,653

VAT payable 12 - 9,490,523

Total Equity and Liabilities 427,432,749 520,390,924

Statement of Financial Position 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

Notice: These financial statements were prepared on 28 May 2015 and have been idependently 
audited by Ngubane & Co. in accordance with the provisions of the Public Audit Act 2006 as well as 
any applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2008. The statements were prepared by Siphiwe Seme, 
the Acting Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015
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Notes 2015
R

2014
R

Grants applied 13 40,119,808 29,760,633

Other income 385,939 160,875

Operating expenses (50,745,445) (39,309,193)

Loss from Operations before Finance Expense 14 (10,239,698) (9,387,685)

Investment income 17 10,239,698 9,387,685

Surplus before Taxation - -

Taxation 15 (388,069) (760,168)

Deficit for the Year (388,069) (760,168)

STATEMENT OF COMPREhENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
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Share Capital Share Premium Accumulated 
Surplus/(Loss)

Total

Note R R R R

Opening as at 1 April 2013 1,000 151,200,000 764,540 151,965,540

Deficit for the year 14 - - (760,168) (760,168)

Closing as at 31 March 2014 1,000 151,200,000 4,372 151,205,372

Deficit for the year 14 - - (388,069) (388,069)

Closing as at 31 March 2015  1,000 151,200,000 (383,697) 150,817,303

STATEMENT OF ChANgES IN EQuITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
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CASh FLOwS FROM OPERATINg ACTIVITIES Notes 2015 2014

R R

Cash receipts from customers 24,561,775 29,285,477

Cash Paid to Suppliers and Employees (50,745,445) (39,309,193)

Cash utilised in operations 16.1 (26,183,670) (10,023,716)

Taxation 15 - (760,168)

Finance Income 10,239,698 9,387,685

Net cash flows from operating activities (15,943,972) (1,396,199)

CASh FLOwS FROM INVESTINg ACTIVITIES

Additions to property, plant and equipment (176,257,105) (92,194,990)

CASh FLOwS FROM FINANCINg ACTIVITIES 84,563,254 159,821,100

Deposits payable 5,000 -

Grant received 124,678,062 189,581,733

Grant applied (40,119,808) (29,760,633)

Net (decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash 
Equivalents

(107,637,824) 66,229,912

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 461,176,479 394,946,567

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 353,538,656 461,176,479

STATEMENT OF CASh FLOw  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
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1. ACCOuNTINg POLICIES

1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 
Statement of Compliance
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards.

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis utilising the historical cost 
concept except for financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at 
fair value.

uSE OF ESTIMATES AND JuDgEMENTS
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of asset, 
liabilities, income and expenses. These also concern the future and will thus affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. The resulting accounting estimates 
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other 
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the 
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods’ revisions 
affect both current and future periods.

CRITICAL ACCOuNTINg ESTIMATES AND ASSuMPTIONS
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year relate to credit impairment 
losses on loans and receivables, as well as impairment losses on investment property. During the 
period under review, there were no other areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, 
or areas where assumptions and estimates were significant to the financial statements.

COMPARATIVE FIguRES
Necessary comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation in the 
current year.

SIgNIFICANT ACCOuNTINg POLICIES
Except as described otherwise, the accounting policies set out on the next page have been applied 
consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

NOTES TO ThE Annual Financial Statements  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
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NOTES TO ThE Annual Financial Statements  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

1.2 INTANgIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets, other than goodwill (refer to basis of consolidation policy above), are recognised 
if it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity from the intangible assets and 
the costs of the intangible assets can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets comprise separately identifiable intangible items arising from business 
combinations, computer software licenses and other intangible assets. Intangible assets are 
recognised at cost. The cost of an intangible asset acquired in a business combination is its fair 
value at the date of acquisition. Intangible assets with a definite useful life are amortised using the 
straight-line method over their useful economic life, generally not exceeding 20 years. Intangible 
assets with an indefinite life are not amortised. At each date of the consolidated Statement of 
Financial Position, intangible assets are reviewed for indications of impairment or changes in 
estimated future economic benefits.  If such indications exist, the intangible assets are analysed to 
assess whether their carrying amount is fully recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised if the 
carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are tested annually for impairment and whenever there 
is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Computer Software
Acquired computer software is capitalised as an asset on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire 
and bring the specific software into use. These assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over 
their estimated economic life. Capitalised computer software is carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and impairment losses. Computer software is tested annually for impairment or 
changes in estimated future benefits.

System Development Costs
Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense 
when incurred. Direct software development costs that enhance the benefits of computer software 
programmes and are clearly associated with an identifiable and unique software system, which 
will be controlled by the Group and has a probable benefit exceeding one year, are recognised 
as intangible assets. These costs are initially capitalised as work-in-progress up to the date of 
completion of a project, after which the asset is transferred to computer software and accounted 
for as per the computer software and licenses policy. Management reviews the carrying value of 
capitalised work-in-progress on an annual basis, irrespective of whether there is an indication of 
impairment.

Development costs are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:
• It is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;
• Management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;
• There is an ability to use or sell the software product;
• It can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic 

benefits;
• Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or 

sell the software product are available; and
• The expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably 

measured.
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1.3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQuIPMENT
All property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress is included at cost.  Cost includes all costs 
directly attributable to bringing the assets to working condition for their intended use.  Borrowing costs 
are capitalised in relation to plant requiring a substantial period of time for preparation for intended use.  
Buildings, infrastructure, plant, equipment and vehicles are depreciated on a straight line basis at rates that 
will reduce the historical costs to estimated residual values over the anticipated useful lives of the assets. 
Where buildings are erected on leasehold land or land held under a permission to occupy certificate with 
a finite life, the buildings are depreciated over the duration of the lease or permission to occupy certificate.

Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance lease arrangements are capitalised.  Such assets are 
depreciated on a straight line basis at rates considered appropriate to reduce capitalised cost to estimated 
residual value over the anticipated useful lives of the assets.  Lease finance charges are amortised over the 
duration of the finance leases using the effective interest rate method.  Properties subject to sale and lease-
back transactions, where the lease is classified as a finance lease and the value of the property implicit in 
the lease is higher than the carrying value, the carrying value is not adjusted and no gain is recognised.  
The residual value of assets is the estimated amount that the entity would currently obtain from disposal of 
the asset, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already at the age and in the 
condition expected at the end of its useful life.  A review of residual value is performed at balance sheet 
date each year, as well as an adjustment, if appropriate.  The assets useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if 
appropriate, at each balance sheet date. The anticipated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Item useful life

Furniture and fittings 10 years 

Office equipment 5 years 

Computer equipment 3 years 

Computer software 3 years

1.4 INVENTORIES AND CONTRACTS IN PROgRESS
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on 
weighted average principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring, converting the inventories and 
bringing them to their present location and condition. In the case of manufactured or constructed inventories 
and work in progress, costs include an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal 
operating capacity.  Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary cause of business, less 
the estimated completion costs and selling expenses.

1.5 gOVERNMENT gRANTS
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the entity has complied with the 
conditions attached to the grant and that the grant has been received. Government grants whose primary 
condition is that the entity should purchase, construct or acquire non-current assets, are deducted on 
arriving at the carrying amount of the assets.

Other government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the 
costs for which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants that are 
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purposes of giving immediate 
financial support to the entity with no future related costs, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in 
which they are received.

Government grants received for specific loans and advance programmes are recognised as income when 
all the conditions of the grant have been fulfilled and there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received.
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1.6 OPERATINg LEASE
Assets leased by the entity under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained 
by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Rentals payable under the operating leases are 
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

1.7 DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, for all temporary differences arising between the 
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred 
tax assets and liabilities shall be measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period 
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised to 
the extent that it is probable that taxable benefits will be available against which deductible temporary 
differences can be utilised.

1.8 PROVISIONS AND CONTINgENT LIABILITIES
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the entity has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation.

A provision for an onerous contract is recognised by the entity when the expected benefits to be 
derived by the entity from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation 
under the contract. An onerous contract is a contract in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the 
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it.

Contingent liabilities, which include certain guarantees other than financial guarantees, are possible 
obligations that arise from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence, 
or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the entity’s control.  
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements but are disclosed in the Notes to 
the Financial Statements unless they are remote.

1.9 REVENuE
Net Interest Income
Interest income and expenses are recognised in profit or loss on an accrual basis, with reference to the 
principal outstanding, using the effective interest rate method.

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or 
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial instrument.

In terms of IAS 39, interest is accrued in respect of impaired advances based on the original effective 
interest rate used to determine the recoverable amount.
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1.10 FINANCIAL INSTRuMENTS 
Non-derivative Financial Instrument
Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity and debt securities, trade and other 
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and advances, borrowings and deposits.

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus for instruments not at fair 
value, through profit and loss, any directly attributable transaction costs, except as described below.   
Subsequent to initial recognition, non-derivative financial instruments are measured as described below.

A financial instrument is recognised if the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Financial assets are derecognised if the entity’s contractual right to the cash flows from the 
financial assets expires or if the entity transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining 
control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the 
entity’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled.

Financial Asset
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
An instrument is recognised at fair value through profit and loss if it is held for trading or is designated 
as such upon initial recognition. Financial instruments are designated at fair value through profit and 
loss if the entity manages such investments and makes purchases and sale decisions based on their fair 
values. Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, and changes 
in value are recognised in profit or loss. The fair value of publicly traded investments is based on quoted 
bid prices.

Loans and Receivables
Loans and advances are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments, are initially 
measured at fair value plus origination transaction costs and subsequently accounted for at amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment losses.

Trade and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 
market, are classified as loans and receivables. Loans and other receivables are measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment charges.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term, 
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and a net of bank overdrafts.

Other
Other non-derivative financial instruments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method, less any impairment losses.
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Impairment of Financial Asset
Loans and advances are stated after the deduction of provisions for credit impairment. Loans and 
advances are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective evidence of 
impairment. Loans and advances are impaired and impairment losses are incurred if there is objective 
evidence of impairment resulting from one or more loss events that occurred after initial recognition, 
that indicates it is probable the entity will be unable to realise all amounts due. The carrying amount of 
a financial asset identified as impaired is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount. The estimated 
recoverable amount of the advance is calculated as the present value of expected future cash flows 
discounted at the original effective interest rate at inception of the advance.

In estimating the expected future cash flows from the realisation of ‘permission to occupy’ securities, 
past experience in realising this type of security has been taken into account. Subsequent to impairment, 
the effects of discounting unwind over time, based on the original effective interest rate.

The impairment of non-performing loans and advances is based on periodic evaluations of loans and 
advances and take account of past loss experience and the economic climate in which the borrowers 
operate. Impairment of performing loans and advances is accounted for if there is observable evidence 
that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset. In order to provide 
for latent losses in a portfolio of loans and advances that have not yet been individually identified as 
impaired, a credit impairment for incurred but not reported losses is created based on historic loss 
patterns and estimated emergence periods. This impairment is referred to as unidentified impairment.

Once all reasonable attempts have been made at collection and there is no realistic prospect of 
recovering outstanding amounts, an advance is written off against the related impairment. Loans and 
advance impairments and any subsequent reversals thereof or recoveries of amounts previously written 
off are either charged or credited to the income statement.

Non-current Assets held for Sale
Non-current assets (or properties in possession) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying 
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. 
They are stated at the lower of the carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Derecognition of Financial Assets
The entity derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expire; or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of 
the asset to another entity. If the entity neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the entity recognises its retained interest in 
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the entity retains substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the entity continues to recognise the 
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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1.11 IRREguLAR, FRuITLESS AND wASTEFuL EXPENDITuRE
Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of or not 
in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including PFMA and any provincial 
legislation providing for procurement procedures in that Provincial Government.

This is expenditure that would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. All 
irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is charged against income in the period in which it is 
incurred and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of 
Financial Performance.

1.12 SuBSEQuENT EVENTS
The entity accounts for subsequent events in terms of IAS10. The key issues recognised and 
disclosed include events after reporting period: noting events favourable or unfavourable that 
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date that the financial statements are 
authorised for issue.

Adjusting Event
Adjusting events are events after the reporting period that provide further evidence of conditions 
that existed at the end of the reporting period that can impact on the going concern of the entity. 
These events will require an adjustment to the Annual Financial Statements.

Non-adjusting Event
Non-adjusting events are events after the reporting period that are indicative of a condition that 
arose after the end of the reporting period but for which no adjustment is necessary.

1.13 NEw STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATION ADOPTED

Standard/Interpretation Date Issued 
by IASB

Effective Date
Periods Beginning  
On or After

IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
employee contributions

Nov 2013 1 Jul 2014

Amendments to 
Six Standards

Improvements to IFRSs 2010-
2012 Cycle Dec 2013 1 Jul 2014

Amendments to 
Four Standards

Improvements to IFRSs 2011-
2013 Cycle

Dec 2013 1 Jul 2014

IFRS 9 (2009) Financial Instruments Nov 2009 To be decided

IFRS 9 (2010) Financial Instruments Oct 2010 To be decided
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2. LEASEhOLD ASSET
Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone Company SOC Limited has entered into a financial lease 
agreement with Umhlathuze Municipality over land described as Erven 16178-16281 Richards Bay, forming 
Phase 1A of the industrial development zone.

The lease is for an indefinite period, that is, until date of transfer of the land to the company and the 
lease payments are a nominal R1.00 per annum. Monthly rates and taxes in respect of the leasehold are 
approximately R459 660 on average per month.

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQuIPMENT

2015 Total Furniture &
Fittings

Office
Equipment

Computers &
Software

work-in-
Progress

R R R R R
Carrying amount at beginning of year 7,860 7,860 - - -

Cost 12,338  12,338 - - - 
Accumulated depreciation  (4,478) (4,478) - - -

Current year additions 176,257,105 766,765 24,485 380,662 175,085,193
Grants applied (176,257,105) (766,765) (24,485) (380,662) (175,085,193)
Depreciation for the year (1,590) (1,590)

Cost 12,338 12,338 - - -
Accumulated depreciation (6,068) (6,068) - - -

Carrying amount at end of year 2015 6,270 6,270 - - -

2014 Total Furniture &
Fittings

Office
Equipment

Computers &
Software

work-in-
Progress

R R R R R
Carrying amount at beginning of year 16,905 16,905 - - -

Cost 19,794  19,794 - - - 
Accumulated depreciation  (2,889) (2,889) - - -

Current year additions 92,194,990 19,644 183,655 344,407 91,647,285
Grants applied (92,194,990) (19,644) (183,655) (344,407) (91,647,285) 

Depreciation for the year (1,590) (1,590) - - -

Assets write off (7,456) (7,456)

Cost 12,338 12,338 - - -
Accumulated depreciation (4,478) (4,478) - - -

Carrying Amount at end of Year 2014 7,860 7,860 - - -
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2015 2014 

R R

4. DEPOSITS

Tuzi Gaz Properties – occupation of office buildings 175,816 175,816 

City of Umhlatuze – electricity 25,300 25,300 

201,116 201,116 

5. ACCOuNTS RECEIVABLE

Employee debtors 40,400 37,330 

Other receivables 59,698,125 58,853,201 

59,738,525 58,890,531 

Ageing of past due but not impaired

30 to 60 days 316,586 801,949 

60 to 90 days - -

90 to 120 days - -

>120 days 59,421,939 58,256,820 

59,738,525 58,890,531 

Included in the balance above is R7 545 668 (2014: R7 219 445) that 
is held in trust by the conveyancers, Shepstone and Wylie pending 
the transfer of land and R51 200 000 (2014: R51 200 000) deposit 
paid to the City of uMhlathuze as part payment for the purchase of 
the land.

6. CASh AND CASh EQuIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:

Absa current account  1,161,618 205,766 

Absa call account 21,417,307 94,615 

Petty cash 2,040 2,908 

DTI grant account 48,482,856 183,304,957 

Land purchase account 18,871,876 8,285,351 

First National Bank call account 81,389,534 90,695,475 

Investec call account 96,882,046 89,189,454 

Nedbank call account 76,781,380 89,397,954 

Absa DTI-Nyanza call account 8,550,000 -   

353,538,656 461,176,479 
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2015 2014

R R

7. DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation asset comprises:

Depreciation (318,993) (84,293)

Accumulated loss (110,567) (110,567)

Provision for bonuses 629,228 -   

Provision for leave pay 78,963 78,963 

Rental smoothing (5,500) 959 

273,132 (114,937)

Deferred taxation reconciliation:

Balance at beginning of the year (114,937) (875,105)

Movements during the year

Adjustments

Depreciation (234,700) (42,523)

Provision for leave pay - 53,256 

Provision for bonuses 629,228 705,393 

Rental smoothing (6,459) 44,042 

Balance at end of the year 273,132 (114,937)

8. ShARE CAPITAL

Authorised share capital

1 000 ordinary shares of R1 each 1,000 1,000

Issued share capital

1 000 ordinary shares issued @ R1 per value
1 000 shares held by the Province of KwaZulu-Natal 
represented by its Department of Economic Development, 
Tourism and Environmental Affairs

9.  ShARE PREMIuM 151,200,000 151,200,000
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2015 2014

R R

10. DEFERRED INCOME

Opening balance 347,572,376 279,946,266 

Government grants received during the year 
(excluding VAT)

111,377,193 181,651,276 

Interest received on DTI grant (capital grant) 13,300,869 7,930,457 

Grants applied against operating expenditure (40,119,808) (29,760,633)

Grants applied against fixed assets other than work in progress (1,171,912) (547,705)

Grants applied against work in progress (175,085,193) (91,647,285)

255,873,524 347,572,376

11. ACCOuNTS PAYABLE

Creditors for rent straight-lining 147,808 170,876

Provisions 10,570,569 7,916,789 

Accounts payable 9,745,414 4,034,988 

20,463,790 12,122,653

11.1 DEPOSITS PAYABLE 5,000 -

12. VAT RECEIVABLE/(PAYABLE)

South African Revenue Services 13,948,182 (9,490,523)

13. gROSS REVENuE 40,505,747 29,921,508 

Gross revenue comprises government grants recognised as 
income after taking VAT into account, tender fee income, refund 
from SETA and lease income.

14. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

Loss from operations is stated after taking the following into 
account:

Auditors remuneration 174,967 350,631

– for services as auditors (both internal and external)

Depreciation: Furniture & fittings 1,590 1,590

Directors fees 1,972,111 2,168,299 

Staff costs 24,170,245 18,010,627 

Legal fees 418,785 1,027,908 

Lease payments 75,312 57,016
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2015 2014

R R

15. TAXATION

SA normal tax comprises:

Taxation for the year

Current tax - -

Deferred tax 388,069 (760,168)

388,069 (760,168)

Reconciled as follows:

Standard  tax rate 28% 28%

Taxation on profit for the year at the standard rate

Tax effect on permanent differences 388,069 (760,168)

388,069 (760,168)

Effective tax rate 28% 28%

16. NOTES TO ThE STATEMENT OF CASh FLOwS

16.1 Cash generated from operations

Surplus/(Deficit) before taxation  -  - 

Adjustment for:

Depreciation  1,590  1,590 

Depreciation – write off  -  7,456 

Finance income  (10,239,698)  (9,387,685)

Operating income before working capital changes  (10,238,108)  (9,378,640)

Working capital changes  (15,945,562)  (645,076)

(Increase)/Decrease in accounts receivable  (847,994)  168,238 

Decrease in VAT payable  (9,490,523)  (1,508,825)

Decrease in deferred tax asset  -  760,167 

Increase in VAT receivable  (13,948,182)  -   

Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable  8,341,137  (64,655)

Cash utilised in operations: (26,183,670) (10,023,716)
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18. RELATED PARTIES 

The Company in the normal course of business entered into various related party transactions 
with its stakeholders. These transactions occurred under terms and conditions that are no more 
favourable to those entered into with third parties in arm's length transactions.

The following are defined as related party transactions: 2015
R

2014
R

Balance Sheet Items

–  Transfers (KZN Department of Economic Development,         
   Tourism and Enviromental Affairs)

59,798,246  25,164,000   

–  Transfers (Department of Trade and Industry ) 51,578,947  181,000,000 

Income Statement Items

– Directors’ fees  1,972,111  2,168,299 

– Audit fees (KZN Provincial Treasury)  -    75,636 

KEY PERSONNEL REMuNERATION – EXECuTIVE 
MANAgEMENT 

Executive Management as at 31 MARCH 2015

Salary Performance 
Bonuses

Allowance  Leave Other*  Total 

R R R R R R

Mr P. Motsoahae (Chief 
Executive Officer)

 2,350,547  295,393  -    85,689  2,731,630 

Mr M. Nkopane  1,200,360  151,349  12,000  -    37,180  1,400,890 

Mr S. Ngcamu  1,328,509  151,349  14,400  -    48,436  1,542,694 

Mrs N. Zulu  1,341,344  151,349  14,400  123,368  12,207  1,642,668 

Mr J. Muller  1,341,426  151,349  14,400  -    28,254  1,535,430 

Ms Zeka  1,274,450  151,349  14,400  -    17,291  1,457,490 

 8,836,638  1,052,141  69,600  123,368  229,057 10,310,803 

17. INVESTMENT INCOME

2015 2014

Investment income comprises interest received on short-
term fund deposits with various banks as per the Company's 
investment policy.

R R

Interest earned 10,239,698 9,387,685



RICHARDS BAY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT ZONE ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015

GATEWAY TO WORLD MARKETS

82

NOTES TO ThE Annual Financial Statements  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

Executive Management as at 31 MARCH  2014

Salary Performance 
Bonuses

Allowance  Leave Other*  Total 

R R R R R R

Mr P. Motsoahae (Chief 
Executive Officer)

 739,279  -    22,378  761,657 

Mr I. Nxedlana  -    1,132,488  -    1,132,488 

Mr M. Nkopane  1,038,327  207,232  843,593  -    60,689  2,149,841 

Mr S. Ngcamu  1,026,327  155,424  194,672  -    98,123  1,474,546 

Mrs N. Zulu  1,038,327  103,617  74,400  -    31,641  1,247,985 

Mr J. Muller  1,050,737  44,551  38,810  -    33,413  1,167,512 

Ms Zeka  1,100,828  207,232  14,400  -    32,820  1,355,280 

 5,993,826  1,850,542  1,165,876  -    279,065  9,289,308 

*   Other includes reimbursement costs for expenses incurred while on a business trip in order to 
    execute assigned duties.

KEY PERSONNEL REMuNERATION – DIRECTORS

 2015 2014

R R

Ms B. Kunene *  415,675  581,315 

Mr M. Clark  396,235 393,162

Ms T. Eboka  138,938 197,081

Mr Z. Fihlani  235,307 209,497

Mr A. Mahlalutye  58,971 123,379

Mr S. Makhanya  133,606 122,213

Mr E. Mbatha  174,878 156,732

Mr K. Naidoo **  -    -   

Ms J. Ndlovu  191,048 160,785

Ms M. Ndlovu  147,902 158,061

Ms N. Sithole *  79,553 65,025

    

  1,972,111 2,167,248

*   Board fees are paid to the third party.

** No remuneration paid as they are senior government officials representing the EDTEA and the 
DTI.
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19. COMMITMENTS 2015 2014

R R

Operational Commitments

Current  1,890,087  2,072,009 

Next 12 months 5,567,323 159,175

From 2-5 years 200,514  4,127,640 

Later than 5 years  -    -   

Total future cash flows 7,657,925 6,358,823

Capital Commitments

Current 175,085,193 124,079,135

Next 12 months  60,417,110  95,679,461 

From 2-5 years  7,199,368  -   

Later than 5 years  -    -   

Total commitments 250,359,595 226,117,419

20. IRREguLAR EXPENDITuRE, wASTEFuL AND 
uNAuThORISED EXPENDITuRE

2015
R

2014
R

20.1 IRREguLAR EXPENDITuRE

Opening balance  -    -   

Add: Irregular expenditure – current year  -    163,931 

Less: amount condoned  -    (163,931)

 -    -   

Less amounts recoverable (not condoned)  -    -   

Less amounts not recoverable (not condoned)  -    -   

Irregular Expenditure Awaiting Condonation  -    -   

Details of Irregular Expenditure – Current year

Incident

 -    -   

Non-compliance with supply chain management policy 
(Condoned by condoning authority – Accounting Authority)

 -    163,931 

        

Non-compliance with subsistence and travel policy (condoned 
by condoning authority – Accounting Authority)

 -    -   

Total  -    163,931 
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20.2 wASTEFuL EXPENDITuRE

Opening balance  -    -   

Add: wasteful expenditure – current year  -    -   

Less: amount condoned  -    -   

 -    -   

Less amounts recoverable (not condoned)  -    -   

Less amounts not recoverable (not condoned)  -    -   

wasteful Expenditure Awaiting Condonation  -    -   

Details of wasteful Expenditure – Current year

Incident

None  -    -   

Non-compliance with supply chain management policy 
(Condoned by condoning authority – Accounting Authority)

 -    -   

 -    -   

Non-compliance with payment terms (Condoned by condoning 
authority – Accounting Authority)

 -    -   

Total  -    -   

20.3 uNAuThORISED EXPENDITuRE

Opening balance  -    -   

Add: unathorised expenditure – current year  -    -   

Less: amount condoned  -    -   

 -    -   

Less amounts recoverable (not condoned)  -    -   

Less amounts not recoverable (not condoned)  -    -   

unauthorised Expenditure Awaiting Condonation  -    -   

Details of unauthorised Expenditure – Current year

Incident

None  -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

Total  -    -   
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21. FINANCIAL INSTRuMENTS  
 
The company’s exposure to interest rate risk on financial instruments at the balance sheet date is 
as follows:        

2015 2014

Total Financial Assets  R  R 

Trade and other receivable  59,738,525  58,890,531 

Cash and cash equivalents  353,538,656  461,176,479 

 413,277,181  520,067,011 

Total Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables  20,463,790  12,122,653 

Credit Risk
The Company does not have a huge debtors book, as a result, its exposure to credit risk is minimal. 
The items indicated under trade and other receivables refers largely to R51.2 million land deposits 
for the Phase 1A. The cash and cash equivalents are deposits that are placed with A1 rated 
financial institutions. The deposits comprise grants received from the EDTEA and DTI – these funds 
are immediately available upon request. The Company limits its exposure by dealing with well-
established financial institutions. The Company does not have significant exposure to an individual 
debtor or counter-party. 

Liquidity Risk        
The Company exposure to liquidity risk is very minimal as it is 100% funded by the EDTEA and the 
DTI. The annual budgets are approved at the beginning of each fiscal year and funding agreements are 
concluded between the parties. Cash flows are monitored monthly against budgets and adjustments 
are made where necessary. Risk management assessments are conducted to assist with identifying 
any possible cash flow, liquidity or other risks. In addition, the entity is exploring opportunities for 
raising income to ensure the sustainability of the Company in case the grant is reduced or cut back.

Interest Rate Risk        
Although the Company’s funds are subject to interest rate risk, they are placed with reputable 
financial institutions. The entity does not hedge any of its funds but monitors the fluctuations in 
interest rates and obtains advice from bank officials on a regular basis.   
 

2015 2014

R R

22. PROVISIONS

22.1 LEAVE PAY ACCRuED

Opening balance 711,107 497,106 

Movement during the year 406,536 214,002 

Closing balance 1,117,644 711,107

Leave pay is determined using historical data based on past services offered by employees. Leave 
pay is accrued as required by IAS 19.    
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2015 2014

 R  R 

22.2 PROVISION FOR BONuSES

Opening balance  1,491,607  3,541,996 

Performance bonuses paid  (1,546,521)  (2,689,195)

Performance bonuses  3,793,765  638,806 

 3,738,850  1,491,607 

The Company remunerates employees on performance as per Company policy.

22.3 OThER PROVISIONS 2014 2014

- Litigation claims  5,486,757  5,486,757 

- Other  227,318  142,619 

23. CONTINgENT LIABILITIES  
A former employee has filed a review application with the Labour Court contesting his dismissal.
The matter is still to be considered by the Court. Given the success in the CCMA, the Company is 
optimistic of success in the Labour Court.      
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2015 2014

R R

grants applied  40,119,808  29,760,633 

Other income  385,939  160,875 

Lease income  222,425  - 

Tender fees  152,018  98,247 

Other Income  11,496  62,628 

Expenditure  50,745,445  39,309,193 

Advertising and promotion  1,837,131  1,622,592 

Agents’ commission  18,497  16,966 

Audit fees  174,967  350,631 

Asset written off  -    7,456 

Bank charges  24,481  22,063 

Bursaries  138,622  134,066 

Cleaning services  29,947  33,050 

Corporate social investment  87,403  153,035 

Depreciation  1,590  1,590 

Directors' fees  1,972,111  2,168,299 

Electricity and water  2,003,254  113,125 

Insurance  185,331  126,049 

IT accessories  3,651  -   

Lease charges  75,312  57,016 

Legal fees  418,785  1,027,908 

Maintenance  621,742  108,786 

Marketing materials  25,460  183,604 

Postage, printing and stationery  279,962  214,695 

Professional services  6,722,769  7,359,271 

Property rates and taxes  5,335,815  1,725,693 

Refreshments  376,361  240,950 

Recruitment and transfers  399,225  613,594 

Rental expenses  1,814,776  2,014,992 

Employee costs  24,170,245  18,010,627 

Security services  664,792  42,434 

SMME development  36,570  45,845 

DETAILED STATEMENT OF COMPREhENSIVE INCOME   
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
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2015 2014

R R

Subscriptions and licensing  526,644  526,491 

Telephone and fax  382,517  349,015 

Training  518,866  470,699 

Venue hire and exhibitions  15,570  14,772 

Travel and accommodation  1,883,048  1,553,879 

Loss Before Investment Income  (10,239,698)  (9,387,685)

Investment income  10,239,698  9,387,685 

Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year  -    -   
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AgSA Auditor-General of South Africa

APP Annual Performance Plan

BRICS Brazil, Russia, India, China and South Africa

BBBEE Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CFO Chief Financial Officer

DwS Department of Water and Sanitation

DTI Department of Trade and Industry

EAP Employee Assistance Programme

EDTEA Economic Development, Tourism & Environmental Affairs

EEZ Exclusive Economic Zone

EIA Environmental Impact Assessment

ESID Economic Sectors and Industrial Development

gDP Gross Domestic Product

IDZ Industrial Development Zone

IMF International Monetary Fund

IPAP Industrial Policy Action Plan

Mou Memorandum of Understanding

NDP National Development Plan

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

PgDS Provincial Growth and Development Strategy

MEC Member of Executive Council

MTEF Medium-Term Expenditure Framework

RBIDZ Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone

REIPPP Renewable Energy Independent Power Producer Programme

SCM Supply Chain Management

SETA Sector Education and Training Authority

SEZ Special Economic Zones

SMME Small, Medium and Micro Enterprises

TIA Traffic Impact Assessment

TIKZN Trade and Investment KwaZulu-Natal

TR   Treasury Regulations

TVET Technical and Vocational Education and Training

wuL Water Use Licence

Abbreviations




